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Kenya Medical Supplies Authority
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022 i

t1. Key Entity Information and Management
(a) Background Information
Kenya Medicai supplies Authority (KEMSA) was estabiished as a state Corporationunder the Kenya Medical supplies Authority Act of 25h Janu ary 201.3,as a successorto the Kenya Medicar suppries Agency estabrished under the state Corporations Act.The Act gave KEMSA greater autonomy to run its affairs with crearry definedfunctions' The Act also ensured the Authtrity's functions were in tandem with thefunctiorLs of devolved governments established under Articre 176 or theCorutitutionand Section 67 of the Hea]th Act,2017.

The Health Laws (Amendment) Act, no. 5 0f 201g amended the 2013 act to provide forcollaboration between KEMSA and county governments. The Health Laws(Amendment) Act further provides that nationar Ld county hearth facilities wourdrefer to KEMSA for their hearth products and technorogies. This is in support of thebroad health sector objectives of improving the hea-rth and access to proper healthcareof Kenyan people' KEMSA suppry cha-in activities encompass a range of functions,including forecasting and quantification. The Act further provides a frameworktl*ough which KEMSA can corlaborate and work with the nationa-l referral hospitalsmd the counfy govemrnents by being the nationar strategic stock reserve andprescribes essentia-l health pack.

KEMSA's main suppry chain centre is in Nairobi. In additiory the authority has 2regional disfuibution centres (Mombasa and Kisumu) and 5 regional warehouses(Kakameg4 Eldoret, Nakuru, Ny"rr, *d Meru) across the country to enhanceflexibility and quick response to customers, demand.

(b) Principal Activities
) Core Mandate

II.

iii.

The Authority's Core Mandate as defined in the Act is to;

Procure' warehouse and distribute drugs and medical suppries for prescribedpublic health programmes, the national strategic stock reserve, prescribed
essential health packages and national referra.l hosftuh;
Establish a network of storage, packaging and distribution faciiities for theprovision of drugs and medical suppiies to health institutions;
Enter into partnership with or estabrish frameworks with county Governments forpurposes of providing services in procurement, warehousing, distribution ofdrugs and medical supplies;

1t



/
Kenya Medical SuPPlies Authority
Annual Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended Jlune 30,2022

a IV

liaes".

F Mission Statement
,,To prooiile reliable, a/fordabte anit quality health proilucts, technologies, and suitply

chain solutions for improoeil health care".

! Strategic Objectives of the Authority
l. Einancial Steuatilship: StrengtJrened financial and risk management'

2. Customer Eocas: Efficiently meet Customel needs for enhanced customer

satisfaction.

3. Intemal Busiaess Processes anil systems: Improved internal systerns tl[ough digitai

solutiors.

4. Strategic Partnerships: selection and cooperation with strategic partners for

attain:nent of mutually beneficial goals.

5, Leailership anil Gozsemance: Dynamic and efficient leadership, governaace and

management.

6, Innoaation anil techtology: Intelligent deplofment of technologies that will play an

important role in making the healthcare zupply chain more effective and efficient.

(c) Key Management

The Authority's day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

- Board of Directors

- The Chief Executive Officer

- Management

ll1

Collect information and provide regular reports to the national and county

governments on the status eind cost-effectiveness of procurement, the distribution

Ind vulue o{ prescribed essential medical supplies delivered to health facilities,

stock status and on any other aspects of supply system status and performance

which may be required by stakeholders;

Support county goverrunents to establish and maintain appropriate supply chain

systerns for drugs and medical supplies'

P Vision
,,A wo d class prooiiler of health supply chaift solutions that saae anil tra sfonn
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(d) FiduciaryManagement

oTh1 key management personnel who held office during the financial year
ended 30m June 2022 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were;

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The Board of Directors of the Authority comprises of the chafuperson who is
appointed by the Presiden! the CEo is appointed by the Board of Directors in
concurrence with the Cabinet secretary of Health, the principal secretary of the
Ministry for Health or her representative, the principal secretary to the Nafiona.l
Treasury or his representative, a person recruited by the Council of Governors and
appointed by the Cabinet secretary for Health, tfuee members who are not public
officers with diverse medical suppry chain management experience appointed by the
Cabinet Secretary-Ministry of Health.

lv

I ef Executive OfficerLhl
MwangiDr Monah arlI anl

Ag. Chief
Operations

Executive Officer/Director Mr. Edward Njoroge

ecutive Officer/ Head, KEMSA_Ag. Chief Ex
USAID MCP PTogram

Mr. John Kabuchi

4 Executive OfficerChief I erry Kir:nge Ramadhani
Director- Legal Mr. Fredrick Wanyonyr

6 Ag. Legal Officer Ms Siivia Kanvi
Director- Procurement Mr Charles Juma Ezekiel

8 Ag. Director- Procurement Mr. Edward Buluma
9 Ag. Director- Procurement Dr. Silas Njeru
10. Director, Com:rrercial Services Mr. Eliud Mureithi
11. Ag. Dnector, Commercial Services Dr. Simon Wahome
12 Head, AKEMS USAID MCP Pro am8t Mr. Douglas Onyancha
13 A KEMSA U MSAID CP maProgr Dr. Evans Imbuki
74. Internal Audit Manager Ms. Teresa Mute
15. Director F a1111r &CE teStra w Mr. Waiganjo Karanja
16 Director Human Resource & A drrrinis bation Ms.EbIa Moharned
"17 Head of Finance Ms. Caroline Wanjiru

Ogongi
18 Ag. Head of Finance Mr. James Macharia

\.
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3.

5.

7.
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A11 non-executive directors are indePendent of management of the Authority' The

Board has varied and extensive skills in the areas of medical supply chain

mahagement and business management.

The Board meets quarterly and has a formal scheduie of matters leserved to it and

which are attended to as Per the board work plan' Board papers are circulated well

inadvanceoftheBoardmeetingsbythesecretarytotheboard.Thekeyfunctionof
the Board is to guide and control the performance and management of the affairs of

the AuthoritY.

Tfus includes the duty to ensure that the functions of IGMSA are carried out in an

efficient, transparent and ethical manner and that no particular PeISon oI body is

given undue preference or subjected to any undue disadvantage' The Board considers

and advises the Cabinet Secretary for Health on the development and maintenance of

Medical Supply Chain policy framework and the objectives of KEMSA. It considers

and approves general performance targets, both strategic and business' and the

annual budgets of the AuthoritY.

The Board has appointed four (4) standing Committees to which it has delegated

certain responsibilities with the chairpersons of the Committees reporting to the full

board. operations of each comrnittee are defined in terms of reference approved by

the board. The composition of the standing Committees during the year is as set out

below.

a

CompositionCompositionCompositionositionCom
Directors and the
CEO

Directors and the
Internal Audit
Manager

Directors and the
CEO

Directors and the CEO

Main FunctionMain FunctionMain FunctionMain Function
Oversee QA & control
systems,
warehousing &
distribution of
medicines, customer
services, co-ordinate
updates of EMMS list,
commodities
procurement systems

Consideration of
matters relating to
audit queries,
audit management
Ietters and quality
assurance of
systems and
processes/
including review

Consideration of
human resources and
administration
matters that require to
be considered by the
Board including
recruitment,
promotions, disciPline
and wel{are o{ sta{f.

Review and monitoring of
KEMSA financial Positiory
accounts, financial
statements and stafutory
reports,
Consideration of audit
matters arising out of
KEMSA's financial Position
and statements. examine the

Finance, Strategy {b

Dcvelopnrent Com nrittee

I

Human Rcsources
Conr nr iftee

Audit and Iiisk
Committcc

Supply Chain
Comnrittee



recorrunended structural
developments including ICT
installations and -ut "appropriate
recommendations

of
management

risk
law, ICT poljcy,
accuracy of stock

compliance to th

uency of meetings per
annum
Freq Frequency of

meetings per annum
of

per
Frequency
meetings
annum

Frequency ,f
meetings per annum

y or on need basisQuarterl Quarterly or on need
basis

Quarteriy or on
need basis

Quarterly or on need
basiserson elson onLinton Kinyua

(Current chair)
Nyaga t. (Rtd) Lawrence

Wahome (Current
.hui.)

CUP Dr. Robert
Nyarango (FM
exited in March ,
2022

Members Members Members Members

Terry Kiunge Ramadhani
(FM)

Mary Atieno Awino Dr. Josphat
(FM)

Dr. Robert
Nyarango(FM)
Dr. Tom Menge (FM)
M-y Atieno
Terry KiurLge
Ramadhani (FM)

Mbuva Mury
Awino
Capt
Lawrence
Wahome

Atieno

(Rtd)

Dr. losphat Mbuva
(FM)

Linton Nyaga Kinyua
Dr. Tom Menge (FM)

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority
Annual Report and Financial Statements tFor the year ended June 30,2022

Capt. (Rtd) Lawrence
Wahome (Curren,
chair)

NOTE:

7. CM -Current Member
2. EM- Former Member

vl
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(f) Ileadquarters

13 Commercial Street, Industrial Area,

P.O.Box 47715 - 00100,

NAIROBI
(g) Contacts

Telephone: +254203922000
. Email: info@kemsa.co.ke

Website www.kemsa'co.ke

(h) Bankers

1. National Bank of KenYa

Harambee Avenue
P. O. Box 72866 - 00200

NAiROBI, KENYA

3. Kenya Commercial Bank
Industrial Area
P. O. Box 18031 - 00500

NAIROBI, KENYA

5. Equity Bank Ltd
Westlands Supreme Centre
P. O. Box 75104 - 00200

NAIROBI, KENYA

(i) Independent Auditors

Auditor General

Office of the Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084 - 00100

NAIROBI, KENYA

2. NCBA
Mara Road, UPPer Hill
P. O. Box 44599 - 00100

NAIROBI, KENYA

4. Co-operative Balk of KenYa
Enterprise Road
P. O. Box 17928 - 00500

NAIROBI, KENYA

(j) Principal Legal Advisers

The Attorney General

State law office, Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112 - 00200

NAIROBI, KENYA



2. The Board of Directors

The Directors who served the Authority during the year were as follows;

DOB:28/09/7956
N o n-Erc attizt e D irector
Chairperson - Boaril of Directors
Effective 30th April 202I
Professiory'Academic eualifications: phD_Business

MBA, BCOM-Business Adminishation / Marketing

Mary Chao
Mwadime

Rtd. Captain
Lawrence M.

Wahome

vl ll

Work Experience: Senior acquisition & assistarce specialist _ Consultant with
Xl"{, Senior acquisition & assistance specialist _ USAID/Liberia Mission,
Senior acquisition & assistance specialist _ USAID/East Africa, Nairol
Missiory Chief Supplies Office - Kenyatta National Hospital, project Manager
- Kenya Railways Corporation, Chief Supplies Officer _ Kenya Railways
Corporation among other ranks

DOB:27/07ft968
N on-Exe ctttia e D irector
Chair of Supply Chain Boail Committee
Effective 30tt April 2021

Professiory'Academic eualifications: (Masters, public proc. & Sustainable
Devp., MBA-TotaJ Quality Management post Graduate Cert-Logistics &
intemational Transporf LlM-public procurement Law & poliry Devlp, BB
Logistic & Supply Chain Managemen! Dip_purchasing & Supply (CIPS), DIp-
Aeronautical Navigation).

Work E4rerience: Head of Supply Chain Unit _UN IAIFp Rwanda Counh
Office, Kigali, Head of Procurement Unit _ UN \4Tp Syria Arab Republic
Counhy Office, Damascus, Head of procurement _ UN WFp Afghanistan
Country Office, Kabul, Head of Logistics Unit _ Mazar_e_Shariff Area Office,
Northern region, UNWFP, Afghanistan_ Head of Logistics Unit _ UN \AIFp,
Burundi Country Office, Bujumbura, Head of Logistics Unit _ El Fasher Area
Office, Northern Darfur regiory UNWFP Sudan Counhy Office, Head of
Logistics Unit -Herat Area Office, Western region, UNWFp Afghanistan
Country Office, Mission Logistician - MSF-Holland, Kandahar Office,
Afghanistan, Mission Flight Operations _ UN WFp, Lokichogio. Flight
Navigator/OC Air Movements - Kenya Air Force (Moi Airbase)

o

Leadership ongoing,

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority
Annual Report and Financial Staiements
For the year ended June 30,2022
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ta DOB:L5/01/L980

N on-Executitt e Dhector

Chair of Human Resources Boail Commiltee

30ft April 2021 - 18th March 2022

Professior/Academic Qualifications: Professional Human Resources Society

of Tanzania, Professional Memberslr-ip & working towards Charter status'

Certified Prince 2 Practitioner, LlB-ongoing, MBA-HRM, CIPD, Bachelor of

Education.

Work Experience: Director, Human Resources arLd Academic Support'

Director, Human Resources and Global Organizational Change Lead {or

Electronic Heaith Records (EHR) - Aga Khan University, Senior Director'

President's Delivery Unit - Govemment of Kenya, Regional Leader, Human

Resources, EA, Aga Khan University, Head, Human Resources and Acting

Company Secretary Opportunity lntemational, Human Resources

Coordinator Liverpool Gty CounciJ Gladstone House Secure Children Home,

Liverpool, Youth Progra:nme Officer Uverpool Gty Council Gladstone House

Secure Children Home, LiverPool

DoB:24[71fl962

N o n-E x e c ut ia e D ir e ctor

Effective 30th April 2021

Professiory'Academic Qualifications: Member (CPS(K), Member CPA(K),

MBA, BBA-Accounting, Dip. Business Management

Work Experience: Financial Conholler - DHL Global International, Nairobi,

Group Finance Director - Ocean Freight (E.A') Limited, Mombasa, Director

Finance, Persorurel and Administration - Ocean Freight (E.A.) Limited

Terry Kiunge

Ramadhani

Linton Nyaga

Kinyua

tx
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DOB: 04/07/1979

N on-E x e cutia e D ire c t o r

Effective 18tt March 2022

Professiony'Academic eualifications: ClM_Marketing, Chartered Institute of
Marketing (CM), Level 6, BSC Telecommunications & I! Diploma in
Professional Marketing.

Work Experience: Marketing Exper! - SNDBX I The Village Experb, Founder
& CEO - Ardy Marketing, Business Development Manager _ MBM Africa
Manager - Refinery Grooming, Marketing Manager _ Kingsway Tyres Ltd,
Marketing Executive - Prime Outdoor NetworJ<, and Customer Service

Multichoice (Kenya) Ltd

o

Reema Doshi-Lewis

Dr. Nancy Njeru

DOB:u/07fl979

N on-Exe cufio e Dire cto r
Professior/Academic eualifications: MHSI\II, Bpharm

Work Experience: Mirristry of Healttu Kenya Head _ Division of Hea.lth
Products and Technologies, Division of Health Care financing, Heaith
Economist, Kenya Healthcare Financing Officer, Deparknent of Health Sector
Coordination & lrtergovernmental Affairs, and Head, Free Matemity
Reimbursement Program, National euality Control I-ab (NeCL), Acting
Director, National AIDS and STI Conhol program (NASCOP), program
Pharmacis! Head, Wet Chemistry & Instuumentation Units euality Conhol
Analyst, (NQCL), Quality Control Analyst

DOB 30/091e74

N on-Exe eutia e D irecto r
Chair of Auilit Boaril Committee

Effective 30th Ap ril 2027 - 1.}th l1Larch 2022

Professiory'Academic eualifications: Member-Association for Healthcare
Quality, Certified Processional in Healthcare euality & Safety by the
Healthcare Qua.lity Certification Commission, MSC-CIirjcaI pharmacy, MBA_
Strategic Managemen! Post Graduate Dip.-Health System Management.

Work Experience: Cfuef Executive Officer, Director of Outpatient Services,
Director of Quality and Safety, Chief pharmacist /pharmacy Operations
Manager, Clinical Pharmacist - Getrude,s Children,s Hospital

x

a

)

Dr. Robert Nyarango
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a DOB 2:t14L964

N on-Executiae Director - Alt. to Pt The National Treasury

Professiory'Academic Qualifications: MBA, BCOM' Dip-Supply Chain

Management. Part llT

Work ExPerience: Currently Deputy director' supply chain

managemmt/public procurement deparknen! National Tleasury' Deputy

head of procurement unit Minisky of Health (Feb 2004 to Nov 2008) Deputy

head of procurement unit Ministry of health (200&2004) Head of procurement

National AssemblY (799L-199 6)

Mary Atieno Awino

xt
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3, Management Team a

John Kabuchi
Ag. ChiefExecutive
Officer
MBA, BA
28k December 2021 -
27th May 2022

Dr. Jonah Manjari
ChiefExecutive Officer
(up to l3th May 2022)
MBA, M. Med, MBChB

Edward Njoroge
Director-Operations /
Ag. ChiefExecutive
Officer l4th August
2020 to 28b December
202t

Dr. Jarred Nyakiba
Ag. Director
Operations
MPharm, BPharm
Effective I Oth Feb
2022

Dr. Silas Njeru
Ag. Procurement
Director
Effective l0s Feb
2022

Dr. Evans Imbuki
Ag. Head Medical
Commodity Program
BPharm
Effective l0s Feb
2022

Dr. Simon Wahome
Ag. Commercial
Director
Effective l}h Feb 2022
MPharm, BPharm

Terry Kiunge
Ramadhani
ChiefExecutive
Officer
MBA -HRM, BEd
Effective 196 May
2022
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)

CPA James Macharia
Ag. Finance Manager
Effective rc6 Feb 2022

MBA, BBM, CPAK

Tecla Chepchumba Lel
MSc Procurement, BBM,
K]SM
Ag. Warehouse Manager
Effective lob Feb 2022

Hilary Tiony
Ag. ICT Manager
Effective iOth Feb

2022
MDY, MSS, Security
+, BCFE,CFCE,CEH

Vainora Kerubo
Ag. HR Manager
Effective l0th Feb
2022

Fred Wanyonyi
Director-Legal
Services
LLB, DIP. Law

CPA Geoffrey
Mochache
Principal Auditor
MCom, BCom, CPAK,
CPSP, CQA

Silvia Kanyi
Ag. Legal Officer
Effective loth Feb 2022
MBA, LLB, Dip. LawE
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a
Charles Juma
Procurement Director
MBA, BA

Eliud Murithi
Director Commercial
Services
MBA, BA

\

Douglas Onyancha
Head Medical
Commodity Program
BSc. Electrical Eng.

Ebla Mohamed
Director Human
Resources and
Administration
MBA, BA

Fredrick Wanyonyi
Director Legal
Services
LLB

Dr, George
Walukana
B.Pharm

Edward Buluma
Ag. Procurement
Director
BA, Dip. Purchasing &
Supplies

xrv
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Waiganjo Karanja
Director Finance &
strategy
MBA, BA Econ.,
CPAK

I
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)
Teresa Mute Internal
Audit and Risk
Manager
MBA, B.Ed, ACCA

Ms. Caroline Ogongi
(CPA)
Finance Manager
MBA, BCOM, CPAK
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4. Chairperson's Statement

over the years, KEMSA'' capacity to meet its mandate has been significantry eroded by
several systemic challenges, including poor corporate governance, lack of acco,ntabirity
and foggy visibility of the suppry chain. In the last Financiar year, the reform agenda at
KEMSA has therefore cenhed on addressing challenges in the national supply chain,
specifically by establishing end-to-end visibi-lity of Hea]th products and rechnologies
(HPTs), shengthening acco,ntab ity and reporting at a reveis of the supply chain. The
Kenya Medical supplies Authority (KEMSA) Board is immensery proud of the reform and
transformative pace mainfained in the rast Financiar year. The reform jor:rney was initiated
to restore KEMSA on the path of optimum organisationa_l performarce.

The Kenya Medical supplies Authority, as the read goverrunent suppry chain agent for
IIPTs, is strucfured and resourced to act as a commercial agency, complete with a balance
sheet' In this role, KEMSA provides quaiity Hprs suppry chain solutions to more than
11,500 iast-mile locations and aspires to be the supply chain partner of choice for the public
health system.

Commitment

Conscious of the challenges facing KEMSA and responding to stakehorder calls, the
Government apPointed the Board I currenfly lead as the chairperson at the start of the last
Financial Year. This Board, established through a Gazette Notice on Aprtl ,2g, 2021., has
maintained a united front in its corDrritrent to trarsformational leadership at KEMSA. As
the public institution mandated to ensure last-mile delivery of Health products and
Technologies countrywide, we continue to ca,,y a rife and death obrigation to power the
national health engine. we therefore take our operationar responsibility with utrrost
seriousness and we u,reservedly co,mit to delivering to the satisfaction of our
stakeholders, because, we are here to serve!

The KEMSA statutory mandate places upon us a patriotic mission to be our compatriots'
keeper. We are mission conscious and well-equipped to deliver quality services to facilitate

I
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) positive health outcomes. Undoubtedly, our success this far would not have been possible

wir*rout the support of the dedicated KEMSA Management and Staff teams. Our new

journey to success recognises the Authority's position as a service and resu-lts-oriented

public, not for profit cornmercial agenry. As with any other commercial agency, we are

called upon to maintain high customer exPerience standards while profitably rurming the

business with the highest management and ethical standards possible. Our stakeholders

expect nothing less than an Authority that contributes to the rntional efforts toward

creating a more equitable, healthier and prosperous country.

Business Perf ormance highlightg

underpinned by the KEMSA 2.0 reform strategy, the KEMSA reform joumey has focused

on the business turnaround pillar with considerable success. The business reform strategies

executed in the last Financial Year retumed positive Iesults w'ith several growth areas

notwithstanding the global COVID-19 pandemic challenges that continue to affect supply

chain agencies. we have, therefore, actively focused on building resilience for KEMSA to

tgrprove its service delivery capadty. As facility ordering capacities continue to glow, we

have also continued to grow with our order fiII rates and order turnaround times (TAT)

rapidly improving.

I]1 the last Financi aJYear (FY2O2L-2022), ow bottom line tevenues registered a 98% drop to

close at Kshs 89.5 Million, down from Kshs3.68 billion posted in the previous financial

yeetr" 2020-2021,. We attribute this dedine to Sale of COVID-1g- Medica-l comrtodities at a

loss. The downstde is also attributable to reduced supply chain fees due to exit of UsAID

Medical Commodity Progranrme. The Authority anticipate to grow its revenue by entering

to new strategic partnership.

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors and the management of the Authority shall endeavoul to see to it

that the Authority continues to execute its mandate, particularly in playing its role towards

improving healthcare in Kenya, in light of the National Govemrnent's central pillar of

xvll



Universal Health Coverage. we win continue to count on the invaruabre support from the
Ministry of Health, Nationa-l Treasury, strategic partners and aI our stakeholders.

As a KEMSA Board we will arways strive ensure high lever of effectiveness of and
compliance with the key principles of corporate governance such as transparency and
disclosure, acco,ntability, risk management, internal controls, ethical leadership and good
corporate citizenship.

Outlook

The Board maintains a positive outlook on the Authority's growth prospects with the
reform agenda now at more than g5% imprementation and the recent appointrnent of a
substantive Chief Executive officer. This positive outlook will be underpinned by a

disciplined focus on the traruformation strategy execution. The Board has committed to
ensuring a 100% completion rate for all the priority areas of reform identified in the KRIC
report and the st'ict adoption of the KEMSA 2.0 strategy. The KEMSA 2.0 strategy will
focus on building momentum for organisational productivity; to guarantee efficient last-
mile delivery of heaith commodities cor:ntrywide. The new strategy has been formulated
to position the Authority as the supply chain solutions provider of choice for the Iocal
health system. The KEMSA 2.0 stategy is fo,nded on tlree pillars focusing on driving
operational excellence, enhancing flrstomer experience and repositioning the organisation.

KEMSA will continue to work crosery with the development parklers and forge shong
partnerships to share knowledge and optimise capacity to build a better and more efficient
supply chain in Kenya arrd beyond.

{d
Mary Chao Mwadime

Chairperson - Board of Directors

I
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5. Report of the Chief Executive Officer

TheKenyaMedicalsuppliesAuthority(KEMSA)celebratesthehardworkputinbyallthe

organisational stakeholders towards steadying the ship' A11 our stakeholders have

continuedtoprovidemuch-neededsupportfort}retransformationartdreformagenda.The

execution of the reform agenda under the KEMSA 2'0 strategy is geared at addressing

systemicchallengesinthenationa]supplychainbyestablishingend-to.endvisibilityof

health products and strengthening accountability and reporting at all levels of the supply

ThereformprocessinitiatedbytheGovernmentthroughtheMinistryofHealth(MoH)

kicked off in eamest in the last financial year and now counts several milestones already

achieved. Fuactionally, KEMSA is a strategic national security institution charged with the

wholesaleProcurementofHealthProductsandTechnologies(HPTs)'warehousing'

quality assurance and last mile distribution of health commodities' Without a functional

KEMSA, the national health system engine can be greatly compromised to the detriment

of our national security and development plans' The reform agenda' therefore' aims to

positionKEMSAasaworld-classhealthcommoditysupplychainsolutionsproviderof

choice to save and transform lives

HPTe availabilitY

ToensurethatlGMSAeffectivelyplaysitsroleinthelocalhealthsystem,theManagement

and staff teams are corn:rritted to eslablishing a robust product selection, quantificatioo

procurement, distribution and use of lnformation Technology systems' We are working

closely with the Ministry of Health and other stakeholders to guarantee optimum

availability of HPTs at all public health facilities as the national III{C scale-up Plogresses'

To this end we are working to ensure the availability of all tracer items and other

commodities on the Kenya Essential Medicines List and other MoH HPTs lists. KEMSA

hasalreadypartrreredwiththecountygovelnrrentstoenhancethesupplyofHPTs

tlrough a comprehensive, coordinated and coherent approach We have stepped up the

chain.
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delivery of regular capacity-building programmes on commodilz and data management t
to help the counties strengthen their inventory management at the fac,ity lever and
improve on-demand predictability to avert stock outs.

The stock availability for KEMSA sales of Hprs improved marginany during the year from
63% to 68oh from the previous year, owing to various reform initiatives. In the Fina,.cial
Y ear 202'L'22, the average order FiIl Rate stood a t s0% and Tzoh tor EMMS and programme
orders against a target of g0% and 100%, respectivery. The annual order Tumaround rime
(orr) previous year stood at r7.7 d,ays and has since improved to 12.6 d.aysagainst the
farget of 7 days. The average orr for primary Hearth Facilitie s was 2s.2 days and has
reduced to 19.8 days against the target of 10 days.

In the Financial Year, the Authority significantly enhanced the long-rurming efforts to
improve operating efficiencies by integrating Information Technology systerns. KEMSA is
ba*ing on ICT systerrs to build operational resilience and ensure operating efficiency
rates are maintained at high scores. our procurement function has arso been greatry
expanded and atigned with the Big Four Agenda to provide opportunities for a diverse
supplier base, induding rocar manufacturers and preference and reservations such as
women/ youth, people living with disabilities and other rtisadvantaged groups under
Access to Government procurement Opportunities (AGPO).

Emergency Supply Chain

In the broader building back better national strategy, we have continued to build the
Authority's resilience and capacity to act as an emergency response plafform. The
Authority has completed an intemal process to align its operating procedures to provide
adequate support for public health emergencies. The arignrnen! including updates to the
KEMSA Emergenry Finance and procurement policies, w,I alow the Authority to support
the national public health emergency response mechanisms.

'.
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Several public agencies have been undertaking policy alignments based on learnings from

' 
the CovID-19 pandemic response in 2020 a]td 2021,. As part of the learnings, the Ministry

ofHealthsetuPthePublicHealthEmergenryoperationCentre(PFIEoC)toprovidean

effective, well-coordinated and efficient system for response to the pandemic and any other

pub)ic health emergency that may emerge in the future r:sing the Kenya Public Health

Emergency Supply Chain Framework. The Kenya Public Health Emergenry Supply Chain

Framework offets a structured approach to deploying medical countenneasures duling.a

public heatth emergenry (PIIE)'

InthequesttoeliminateparallelsupplychainsystemsforHlVcorrrrrodities,KEMSAwas

awarded a five-year contract, effective october 1, 2015. The I(EMSA Medical Commodities

Program(MCP)contractwhichlapsedinthelastfinancialyear,isacost-plus-award-fee

completion type of contract for procuring warehousing and distributing US Government

funded heaith commodities. As previously designed, the KEMSA MCP actiyities are

integrated with the broader Authority's operations and structures and leverages on the

existing KEMSA inlrastructure to enhance effectiveness and efficienry' The Government

through MoH, the KEMSA Board, and Management have all remained actively involved

in the ongoing efforts to win back the trust of all donors including UsAID as we seek tlte

renewal of the USAID/KEMSA Mediial Commodities Prograin'

Financial Performance

The Authority,s total income fot the F\ 2o2l-2D22was Kshs89.6 million against a target of Kshs

3.35 billion, representing a 97Yo per{ormance beiow the taiget. Total expenditure amounted

to Kghs 3.08 billion represennnga lo2oh absorption of the approved Kshs 3.03 billion

expenditure budget. The Authority realised a deficit ofKshs 299 bil]io+ whereas Capital

Expenditure was Kshs al55 million, The main capital expenditure cost relates to the project cost of

the ongoing construction of the National Commodity storage Centre/National Supply Chain

cenue. within the period under review, the Authority received Kshs lfl) million as a recurrent

grant and Kshs 333 Million for develoPment Srant from the national Government'

xxl



Kenya Medical Supplies Authority
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022

Strategic partnerehips

Besides the existing commercial rerationships with all county governrnents and other
Public Health Facilities, KEMSA collaborated with the following strategic parhers during
the Financial Year i.e. world Barik, The GIobaI Fund, united Nations Intemational
Children's Emergenry Fund (UNICEF), AMREF Health Afric4 CDIC Kenya, Clinton
Health Access Irritiative (cHA!; LrNFpA, Bil & Melinda Gates Fo,ndation (BMGF) and
the KAZEN Institute Association of Supply Chain Management (ASCM)

a

KEMSA reforms

Recent global deveropments, including the CovID-19 management, have highlighted the
need for efficient a,,d effective suppty chain systems for hearth conunodities. The ongoing
sfrengthening of govemance and institutionar reforms win enhance the efficiency and
transparency of KEMSA. A significant highright of the reforms is the near compretion of
the KEMSA National supply Chain Centre, which is setting the pace for institutional
reforms. This centre, covering more than 12,000 square metres of storage space, now allows
the Authority to consolidate and cenhalise aII national supply chain operations. This centre
has been purpose-built for inward and outward logistical management and provides
robust qua-lity assurance, cold chain solutions, and administrative functions, allowing for
end-to-end visibility. The facility has seen 141% increase in the Authority's hording
capacity from 9,176 Pallet spaces to 22,13'1. This significant volume increase will enable
KEMSA to provide buffer stock for emergency responses. The deveropment of the National
Supply Chain Centre has been funded to a tune of Ksfu 1.73 Billion by the Governrnent of
Kenya and the Global Fund. It wflr receive and dispatch more than 1,g12 stock keeping
units with a throughput varue of crose to Ksfu 27 bilrion. By operating from the National
supply chain Centre, the Authority will make annuar savings amounting to more than
Kshs 240 million as it has been working from 15 reased warehousing faciiities.
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a
The Authority, together with the Ministry of Health, and the DePartment of Health

Products Technologies, is working on developing a donations portal to ease compliance

and operationalisation of requirements of donations. As part of the Board and Management

teams focus on fostering consultative engagements, we are reaching out to the Council of

Governors to establish a Iiaison partnership that allows us to engage tfuough established

frameworks effectivelY.

Overcoming challenges

The Authority continued to wade tfuough some operational challenges as reforms

progressed. With increasing sales, debt management remained an uph-ill task for the

Authority, necessitating concerted credit management interventions. The cledit

management interventions are begiming to provide positive retums as we seek to mitigate

the liquidity risks.

The management teams are also actively engaging the county governments, national

referral hospitals, among other public sector clients, to facilitate supply chain management

capacity building. such capacity building involves advocacy for adopting information

teclmology systems that allow real-time end-to-end visibility at the KEMSA and health

facility levels.

At KEMSA, we have aligned all our business processes and fully automated them thlough

the Authority,s Enterprise Resource PtanrLing (ERP), Logistics Management Information

System (LMIS) and the KEMSA e-mobile service that facilitate on-time stocks fulfilment to

public health facilities countrywide. The award winning KEMSA Proof of Delivery (e-

poD) App has enhanced efficiency and effectiveness in the delivery of Health Products

and Technologies to the last mile. Systems integration with our clients helps manage erratic

ordering/skewed demand for certain products by the county governments. such

integration also allows for efficient route optimisation at the logistics management level

with robust order scheduling.

xxln
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Gratitude t
To this end, I would like to thank our parent Minishy and the Nationar rreasury for the
continued financial and technical support. I arso thank the Board under chairperson Mary
Mwadime for their policy direction and guidance and ail KEMSA staff for their dedication
to delivering against our mandate.

Terry Kiunge
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5. Corporate Governance Statement

Bo"rd M.-bershiP and Attendance

Toeffectivelydischargeitsmandate,theBoardhasestabfishedfour(4)committeeswith
specfictermsofreference.TheBoardappointsintothesecommittees'memberswiththe
requisite skilts and competence to discharge allocated responsibilities. The conrrnittees

reiort to the Board any actions taken for ratification and arry major developments that they

become aware of. The Board receives a rePort of the cornmittee's findings and actions'

These Committees include; the Iinance, Strategy & Development Committee' Audit & Risk

Committee, Supply Chain Comrnittee and the Human Resource Committee'

DuringtheFinancial\ear2021'-2022,therewereatotalnumberoftwenty-two(22)Fu1]

Board Meetings, nine (9) Finance Strategy and Development Committee meetings'

seventeen (17) Human Resources Com-nLittee meetings' tfuee (3) Audit and Risk

Committee meetings and seven (7) Supply Chain Committee meetings

Tablel:BoardMembershipandAttendancefortheCurrentDirectorsfortheFY202l-

2022

220
Chair (from 30s APril,
2021.

theAppointed bY

PresidentMs. Mary Mwadime

1618MemberPS, ThCRepresenting
National TreasMs. Mary Awino

19
Me'!ber
(exited on 20th August
202-L

Representing, MOHDr. Josphat Mbuva

1215
Ma 2022
Member exited on 24d

Representing, MOH

00MemberDr. N eru

2018MemberIndependent
N a

Mr. Linton KinYua

1527MemberIndependentCapt. (Rtd.) Lawrence
Wahome

36Member (exited on 18th

March2022........IndependentDr. Robert NYarango

xxv
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KiungeTerry
Ramadhani Independent Member (exited on 5th

March 2022 10 (t

Reema Doshi Lewii endentInd Member 0 0

Mr. Isaac Odek
Representative
Inspectorate of

of
State

Co ations
Member 6 4

The Authority has a Board Charter in place which sets out the principres, functions and
responsibiJities of the Board in a way that supports the members in carrying out their
shategic oversight function. The Charter compriments and does not reprace or supersede
arly statutory laws and regulations that govern the Authority.

Board Appointment and Removal of Directors

The Authority's Board of Directors comprises the Chairperson who is appointed by the
President, tfuee independent board members who are not public officers with diverse skflrs
and experience in management or in the health sector who are appointed by the Cabinet
secretary, two who are representatives of the principar secretary of the Ministry of Health
and The National rreasury, and one recruited by the councir of Govemors and appointed
by the Cabinet Secretary for Health.

The appointment of a board member ceases if the member resigrs by giving notice, is
absent for three corsecutive meetings, is convicted of an offence, is incapacitated by

Succession Plan

The Authorities' board members may be appointed for a cumulative term not exceeding
six (6) years. These appointments are staggered so that the respective expiry dates of the
members' terms faII at different time to ensure continuity.

Board Charter

xxvr
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a physical or mental iLlness or conducts himselJ in a manner deemed by the appointing

Authority to be inconsistent with membership of the Board.

Roles and functions of the Board

The Chairperson acts as the link between the Board and the Chief Executive officer and

plays a lead role in consensus building between the board members, the Chief Executive

Officer and senior management. The Board has delegated the authority for day-to-day

management to the Chief Executive officer. It however retains the overall responsibfity

for decisions with regard to finances and operations of the Authority. In this regard the

main roles arei

a. Strategicmanagement

b. Corporate govern.mce

c. Key personnel management

d. Financialmanagement

Induction and Training

The Board provides new board members with an effective induction Programme in order

to familiarize them with their responsibilities as directors, general principles of corporate

govemance and Board practices. The induction Programme also provide the board

members with an orientation of the Authority's strategic plans, financial status and

policies, risk managemenf compliance Programmes and the Code of Conduct and Ethics.

Under tlie year of review, 7 new board members were taken tfuough the induction

Programme.

Board and Member Performance

The Board uldergoes an annual evaluation conducted by the State Corporations Advisory

Corrmittee to appraise its performance. The board evaluation provides an opportunity

for board members to identi-fy strengths, collective skill gaps and individual areas of

xxvll



improvement. For the year under review the board evaluation will be conducted witldn
the fust quarter ol finarc:Lal year 22/ 23.

Conflict of Interest

The board members are required to disclose real or potential conflict of interest to the Board

at every meeting at the start of all meetings and are excluded from voting on such areas.

we confirm that there was no business transaction that was hansacted by the Board in
which any of the board members had disclosed a personal interest in conJlict with those of
the Authority

Board Remuneration

Board members are remunerated for their services in accordance with the prevailing
relevant legislative provisiors andf or guidaace from the relevant authority. In line with
bestpractice, board members are entitled to a sitting allowance for every meeting attended
lunch allowance, accornrnodation allowance irnd mileage reimbursement where

applicable. In addition, the Chairperson is paid a monthly honorarium.

Ethics and Conduct

To govern its dealings with stakeholders, the Authority has developed a Code of conduct
and Ethics which the Board, Management and the employees subscribe to in addition to
the Principles of Public service, the provisions of the public officers Ethics Ac! 2003 and

aII other statutory reguJations issued from time to time.

Governance Audit

In order to ensure that the Authority conforrns to the highest standards of good

govern.rnce, governance audits are undertaken amually at the Authority in accordance

with g:.idelines developed and issued by the state Corporations Advisory Cornrrrittee. For

the year under review, a governance Audit will be conducted within the fust quarter of the

w 22/23. The Audit will cover; Leadership and strategic management, transparency and

disclosure, compliance with laws and regulations, communication with stakeholders,

o

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022

xxvl



Kenya Medical SuPPlies AuthoritY
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

o board independence and govemance, board, systems and procedures/ consistent

shareholder and stakeholder value enhancemenf corPolate social resPonsibility and

investment.

xxtx



7. statement of Performance against predetermined objectives for Fy
202V2022

KEMSA has 5 strategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic Plan for the1y 2019 / 2020-
2023 / 2024. These strategic pillars are as follows:

Pillar 1: Financial stewardship: To ersure a robust financial fiamework for concrete
financial base.

Pillar 2: Customer Focus: To increase Market Share from 70y" to 90%.

Pillar 3: Internal Business Processes and system: To have robust physical facilities, internal
business processes, systems and inlrashuctural upgrades that support business growth.

Pillar 4: strategic Partnerships: To develop and strengthen stuategic a_lliances and
partrerships for improved health supply chain systems.

Pillar 5: Leadersh-ip and Governance: To develop a dlmamic, transparent and accountable
governance structure

Pillar 6: Innovation and rechnology: To develop and maintain highly effective, reliable and
secure ICT solutions that enhance user experience in healthcare Service Delivery.

KEMSA develops its ar'rua-l work plans based on the above 6 pillars. Assessment of the
Board's performance against its armual work pran is done on a quarterry basis.

I
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I
8. Management Discussion and Analysis

The Financial year 2021/ 2022 has seen the Kenya Medical supplies Authority make

remarkable strides with regard to ensuring continued execution of its mandate as

outlined in the KEMSA Act of 2013. The Authority's performance for Financial year

under review was however the lowest performance, occasioned by several systemic

factors hence the Authority is currently implementing priority reforms that guarantees

an end to end accountability.

EINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Authority's performance :lr.FY 2021./22 was a deficit of Ksh. 2.99 Billion agairut a
budgeted surplus of Ksh.3.22Million.

F! NANCIAL PERFOMANCE HIGHTIGHTS

3,674 3,6U
5 3,060

92

2015/2076 2076/2071 20122018 . 207812019 20t92020

-.Totallncomc 
{-TotalEpcndlturc -",-Surplus

The factors that have caused the Authorithy's negative perfromance arei

'i' Negative sales Margin from sale of CovID-19 commodities of Ksh. 1.254 Billion
.t Expired Stock of Covid-19 commodities of Ksh.908 Million

't' Reduced supply Chain Fees of Ksh 805.7 Million due to exit of uSAID and slow
operations for other development partners.

* Lost sales on KEMSA Capital due to low order FiIl Rate; Estimated Lost sales is
Ksh 5.192 Billion, hence possible lost net revenue of Ksh. 1.038 Billion

3,282

-

i-

-
--
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a Revenue

The Authority's revenue fot the period ended 30tI June 2022 was made up of Net sales,

supply chain fees, Bank Interest, Grants from MOH for Personal emoluments and other

miscellaneous incomes.

KEMSA's total revenue reduced from Ksh.3.684 Billion in FY 2020 / 21 to Ksh'

89.59Million ln FY 2027/ 22 as a result of negative sales margins of Keh.1.3s1Million

attributable to loss in sale of Covid-19 commodities, dosure of the UsAID/KEMSA

Medical commodities program and slow operations for other development partners.

Expenditure

The overall expenditure for the period was Kih. 3.083Billion. This was a 6% decrease

compared to Ksh.3.282Billion realized in the FY 2020 / 2L hence a saving of Ksh.

198.6Million. when compared against the budget the expenditure was slightly above

by budget 2oh of Ksh. 3.027 Billion.

Employee expenses decreased by 3% from Ksh. 1.264Bi1lion to Ksh 1.22BiIIion due

to staff retirement and non-renewal of expired staff conlracts.

Rental expenses decreased by 60% from Ksh 2lTMillion to Ksh S6Million' This was

as a result of exits from leased warehouses at Sunflag Properties Limited and Astra-

Kikora Limited.

Business Operations

In the FY 2021,-2022 KEMSA managed to procure health products and technologies

(FIPTs) worth K she.29.097 Billion out of which Kshs.7.946 trilli61 fging procurement

of IGMSA Sales items and Kshs. 21.151 Billion being procurement of program items.

The Authority has managed to distribute l{PTs as shown in table 8 below:

Table 1: HPTe distribution per financial year 2018/2019-2020-2021-22

Financial
Year

KEMSA Sales Commodity
Value

Programs
Commodity

Value

Totals
Commodity
Value - (kes)

2018-19 4,729,597,711. 23,421,,755,91.5 28,150,753,626

2019-20 17,956,113,932 25,691.,698,383 37,647,812,315

2020-2"1 21.,444,688,359 29,690,298,327

2021.-22 20,335,659,587 6,636,627,027 26,972,286,61.4

xxxv
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The order fill rate in rhe FY 2018/ 19, 2019/ 20, 2o2o/21 and 2021/ 22 stood at 83%, 69%,
54o/. and 50% respectively against a target oI90%, while that of programs stood at 95%,
90%,94%, and77% respect.ely against a target of 9g%.In addition to the above KEMSA
managed to fulfil EMMS orders and program Orders as shown in table 5.

Table 2: EMMS Orders and Program Orders

Category of Order fill rate FY 2018-

201.9

w 20L9-

2020

83y. 697"

90% 90%

95% 90"/.

w 2020-

202't

54%

90%

94"/.

w 2027-

2022
Order fill rate for KEMSA EMMS

90%Target for KEMSA EMMS

Order fill rate for Programs EMMS
(HfV, TB, FP, Malaria)
Target for Programs EMMS (HIV
TB, FP, Malaria)

98% 98% 987, 987o

The order turnaround for Hospitals in the Fy 2o'18/tg, 2o1g/ 20, 2020 / 2-t and,2o2l/22
stood at 9.7 days, 12.3 d.ays,72.6 days and. 1.4.7 respectively against a target of z d,ays,
while that of Primary Health Facilities (pHFs) stood at 14.6 days,l7 .s days,18.1 days and
19.8 Days respectively against a target of 10 days during the same period. The
performance for the year was below that target due varous factor which includes;

Single orders do not form truck loads leading to longer Rack days
Uncertainty due to ongoing reforms.
Unable to have 100% visibfity of GlT-depends on 3pL System.
Bad terrain in Hari to reach areas/regions.
Iruecurity.
Picking from Different warehouses affecting route integration for direct
rlispatches.

Uncoordinated flow of orders into KEMSA for both Counties & programs.

National Commodity Storage Centre

The National Commodity storage and Dishibution Cenhe aims at shengthening and
optimizing the warehousing and distribution of medicines and other health products to
health facilities. The completion rate of the project is currently at 92% equtppng and
ongoing operationalization in order to meet the scheduled completion date of December
2022. The Highlights of what has been achieved so far include completion of the
construction of the warehouse consisting of a storage warehouse, operation warehouse,

o

i.

ii.
ur.

iv.
v.

vi.

v11.
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a rnezzarine offices, cold rooms and Power center. Additionally, structural works and

finishes have been completed, only awaiting smoke vents and operationalization items.

The Flammable Goods storage (FGS) is complete awaiting connection to fuefighting pipe

works to r:rderground water tank and smoke vents installation. The civil/extemal works

for installation of joint sealant and concrete road works are ongoing'

The Centre will enhance effective and efficient handfing of medical supplies countrywide

thus improving access to essential medicines regularly as well as shorter supply turn-

around times guaranteed to the public health facilities, safety and quality of commodities.

savings wili also be realized on warehouse leasing costs hence value for money in total

cost and also reduction on prices of pharmaceuticals and medical supplies.

Compliance

. The Authority has continued to prudently manage the financial resources and aPPlication

of the same in providing services to the people of Kenya in strict compliance with

Constitution of Kenya 2010, the Public Finance Management Act and related regulations

as well as Treasury Circulars issued from time to time'

In compliance with the Public Finance and Management Aca the Authority did the

following:

i. submission of Quarterly Finaacial statements to the national Treasury by

the 15th day of the next following quarter

ii.SubmissionofthePerformancecontractingEvaluationReportstothe
National Treasury, inspectorate of state Corporation and the Ministry of

Heaith within by the 15th day of the next following quarter

iii. KEMSA Submitted its budget to Nadonal Treasury through the Ministry of

Health bY 31't of lantarY 202I.

iv. Submission of Annua1 Procurement Pian by 156August 2021'

v.CompliancewithothercircularsfromNationaltleasuryissuedinFY
2021,/2022

Enterprise Risk Management In KEMSA

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound risk management and internal control

systems and determining the nature and extent of the risks that the Authority is willing

to take to achieve its strategic objectives. Through the support of the BARC, the Board
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car,es out a regular review of the effectiveness of its risk management framework and
internal conhol systems, covering ali materiar contrors including financiar, operatiohal
and compliance controls.

In order to maintain a robust risk management frameworrg the Authority has estabrished
Enterprise Risk Management in order to ensure that there is an alignment of strategy,
capitaf process, people, technorogy and knowredge in the evaruation and management
of business opportunities, uncertainties and threats in a strucfured and disciplined
manner.

The Authority developed a risk management poricy a,,d strategy to herp in systematic
and disciplined approach in identi-fuing, assessin g, pno1,nz-g, treating, monitoring and
reporting of risks at the Authority when making strategic and operational decisions.

The Authority's top risks arei

O

TOP RISKS
Risk

Index

Risk Description Risk

Level

Mitigation Risk Owner

hplement activity-based budget Ag. FM
CR1 A fan

plan

ure to implement Shabgic High

Implement change managemenl Ag.HR

Good corporate govemance CEO

En-hance staleholdels management Ag. DCS

Enhance Corporate comnunication PRCM

CR2 oss of business with CouatyAI
Government

High

ement shategies for improvingImpl

performance

CEO

Good corporate go',,re^*." CEO

Enhartce slal<eholder's management Ag. DCS

Enharlce Corporate commulication PRCM

CR3 Loss of key partrrers High

t strategies for improvingImplemen

pelformalce

CEO
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o

CRlO Operational Inefficiencies in

Procurement, Warehousing ald

Distribution processes and

support functiors

High

Reengineering

Process

Implement Cyber

surveillarce tools

Implement ICI Information security

policy

ICTM

High

Implement new technologies

CR4 Cyber risks, data managemmt

and system risks arrd ICT

inadequacies

Develop arrd implement financial

plarudng policies

Review credit control measures

Implement budget and control

policies

Ag. FM

Corrply with PFM act and other

regulations

CEOGood corporate govemance

HighCR5 Liquidity arrd cashflow

challenges to meet mandate and

objectives

Robust Ma-rket survey system Ag. PDMedium

FIigh Use competitive methods of

procurement

Non-competitive HPTs pricesCR6

CEOHigh Implement Business Continuity

Management

Disruptions

operatiors

of KEMSAS

PRCMMedia haining

Ag.FMImplement

performance

targets-based

Ag. HRImplernent cormption prevention

measures

PRCMIrrrprove irl information flow

Ag. HR

High

Develop and implement staff

motivation progra:ns

CR8 Negative public perception on

I(E\4SAs brand

Ag.HRTraining ald sensitization

Ag.FMDevelop financial plarmirrg policies

HighCR9 Non- compliance with Legal,

regulatory and other global

standard requirements

Ag.FMLrrplement activity-based budget

Ag. HRImplement change management

xxxlx
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CR11 Iaadequate EHS (Envhonment,

Health artd Safety) and security

on staff arld customers of the

authority

Creating awateness on emergency

response ald evacuation

procedures.

Implement OSH

Medium -

High

xl

ISO

Information and Communication Technology -

The Authority has embraced technology for operational efficiency and effectiveness in
the achievement of its mandate. Information Commr:nication and rechnology (ICT) has
been core in driving KEMSA's business processes. During the year under-ieview, the
development of electronic signature in the Logistics Management Information system
(LMIS) revolutionized the process of purchase orders (Lpo) approval and signing.
Purchase orders are currently approved and signed electronically on tablets.

on the Enterprise Resource Plalning (ERp) system, development has continued
tfuoughout the year with the following being some of the key enhancements. The asset
management module was upgraded with key focus on improving the disposal and
retirement of assets in a timely and effective manner. The system was a.lso enhanced to
support e-signed LPos with respect to automated budget checks and reservation to
hasten the LPO signing and approval process.

The LMIS system was also enhanced with order tracking and ticketing module. This
deveiopment has provided visibility of order progress information to Counties. ln
addition, the electronic proof of delivery (e-PoD) mobile application was rolled out to
both,Internal and third-party hansporters. These initiatives and developments have
eased access to bformation to Counties, health faci-lities and the Authority.

Ag. FIR

Prioritize budgets SO

Inplerrent Mwongozo code of

corporate governance

BOARDCR12 Weak goverurnce

leadership structures

Authority

lII

and

the

Medium -

High

Implement succession management Ag.HR

Develop and implement financial

plarLning policies

Implement IIR instruments

Develop training plan

Inadequate Human resources

capacity

High

Adhere to HR manual and

policy

Ag. HR
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a The warehouse Management system (wMS) was enhanced to support e-sign for delivery

note,s. The system w-as also developed to facilitate dispatch by sub-county. These

developments have helped in reducing the order turn-around times (OT'I)'

The Authority inplemented a wide area netwolk (wAN) and a Local area rtetwork

(LAN)inKgMse.MombasaRDCconnectingMombasawithEmbakasiSupplyChain
L"r,t"r. fhis will enable visibility of stocks between the two warehouses and improve

order processing.

In additioru the Authority implemented a call center and complaint handling system to

enhance customer support. This is a complimentary solution giving customers, suppliers

and other stake holdeis a reliable wjndow to raise and track issues. Finally, KEMSA

implemented the time and attendance module (biometric system) at corune(cial stleet

Embakasi Supply Chain Centre, Kisumu, Mombasa and Eldoret'

9. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) eists to transform lives. This is our

purposei the driving force behind everything we do. I(s what guides us to deliver our

sfrateg, putting the customer/Citizen fust, delivering relevant goods and services, and

improving operational excellence. Below is an outline of the organization s policies and

activities that Promote sustainability.

i) Sustainability strategy and profile

Kenya Medical suppties Authority continuously pursues its strategic Plan as a roadmap

for sustainabi.lity and success. The Authority ensnres effective institutionalization and

operationalization during strategy implementation. The Authority stlategic plan 2019-

2024 is embedded on the following six pillars: Financial stewardship, Customer focus,

Internal business processes and systems, strategic partnerships, Leadelship and

governance, Innovation and technology. To ensure sustainability, there is a performance

management {ramework that covers all staff in all levels, it enables staff to appreciate

their individual linkage and contributions to the implementation of the Stlategic PIan and

the attainment KEMSA objectives

Indeed, sustainable Development Goals No. 3 reads; Ensure healthy lives and promote

wellbeing for all at all ages thereby tfuusting the prominence of citizen's health to the

xli



forefront of responsibility for aII governments. As tre government Authority mandated
to procure, warehouse and distribute Hearth product and rechnorogies (Hprs) to pribric
health facilities at both levels of government, the Authority has always been in a unique
position to deliver this constitutionar promise to the peopre of Kenya even as Kenya
shives to meets its obligations to the global

ii) Environmental Perf ormance

KEMSA has devoted itself to not only protect but also add value to the environment for
the benefit of current and fufure generations.

Ttie Authority disposed 87.44 tonnes of medical waste in the rnancial y ear 202-r / 2022.

The tonnage has remained the same over the last two Financial years.

The Authority has ersured that the disposar process of medicai waste is handled in
compliance with the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, Health Care waste
Management Regulations of the pharmacy and poisons Act (Reguratio rs 2022),

Environmental Management and Coordination Act and rerated poricy and institutional
guidelines.

The Authority has taken deliberate efforts to ensure the destruction of expired
pharmaceuticals are not reieased into the environment to cause damage to the
environment and ecosystem.

The Authority also improved on water conservation which is evidenced by the reduction
of costs from Ksh 898,798 in the Financial year 2020/ 2021, to Kshs 651.,786 in the Fy
2021,/ 2022.This was as result of digging a bore hole and putting up a water treatment
plant to make water fit for its desired end-use and save on tlLe costs incurred purchasing

from vendors at inflated prices.

The Authority reported a significant drop in the cost of electricity to Kshs. 12.6 Million
in the FY 202-L / 2022 from the previous Kshs 15.7 Million. The savings were achieved

from the termination of leases in su.flag and Garissa Depots. plans are underway to set

xlii
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up a solar farm thanks to the architectural roofing design of the new uitra-modern

Natibnal Supply Chain centre in Embakasi. The solar farm wiII produce enough energy

to power uP the two mega go downs.

In an effort to lessen negative imPact to the environment occasioned by heavy reliance

on use of paper, the Authority is scaling up digitisation in most of its business Processes.

The expenditure on paper dropped to Kshs 2,773,560 in the FY 2021'/ 2022 comPared to

the previous year which recorded Kshs 3,480,000. This improvement is credited to the

KEMSA Reforms agenda.

iii) Employee welfare

KEMSA has a poliry document that provides standard procedures and guidelines for

fiJling established vacant positions. These procedures are stictiy followed in order to

maximize chances of recruiting the best persor[rel with the prerequisite experience,

professional qualifications, skills and competencies required by the Authority to fuIfil its

mandate.

a) Recruitment, Selection and Deployment

. KEMSA is an equal oPPortunity employer and is committed to attracting,

recruiting arrd retaining skilled employees to drive and firlfil the orgarLizatior/s

strategy and objectives. The Authority will always seek to recruit the most suitable

Kenyan with qualifications, knowledge, skills and experience relevant to each iob.

o KEMSA will promote equal opportunities to all in emPlo)'ment. There shall be no

cliscrirrrination based on gender, race, religion, colour, etlnicity, disability, marital

status or culture. KEMSA shall also adhere to the Government policy on the one-

third gender requirements.

. The Authority values its human capital and focuses on Providing an enabling

environment and maintaining a work force that is equipped with required

knowledge, skills and comPetencies to enable the Authority achieve its mandate

and develop its workforce

xliii



over the years, the Authority has continuousry retained a skilied team with depths

of experience and ability to execute on our core mandate and objectives. 
,We

continue to attac! develop and retain the right talent while inculcating a

performance-based culture.

xliv
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b) Health and Safety

o KEMSA is conr:rLitted to using sound and resporsible practices to saJeguard the

health, safety and welJare of its employees, contractors, customers and any other

person affected by its operations. occupational Health and safety issues shall be

addressed in systematic, proactive and explicit manner to ensure that they are an

integral part of day to day business of the organization.

. This will be done tfuough total commitrrent and participation from aII levels of
employees. The effective of oHS management system shall be regularly reviewed

in Iight of legislative and organizational changes.

e During the year, we continued conducting welness programs covering staff, their
immediate faurjlies and the neighbouring communities.

c) Gender Analysis

o The Authority staff establishment is aligned with the organizational requirements.

As at 30th J,ne 2022, he Authority had a total worKorce of 754 comprising 38%
' Female & 62oh Male .

d) Capacity Building

In order to equip our people with the relevant skills and competencies, the Authority
implemented its Annual Training Plart during the Fy. The approach adopted including

offering employees training programs that will help them upskifl their professionalism

and enhance their performance. out of a total target of 240 programs, we were able to
execute 68, the programs were greafly affected by disruptions of KEMSAs operations.
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a Performance Appraisal

.ihe Authority implemented its performance management and review program that

entailed review of performance for employees based on a bi-annual and an annual

appraisal framework. The framework incotporates setting talgets, reviewing and

evaluating based on the Strategic Plan, Performance Contracting and other

operational requirements.

e) Employee Wellnese

. The Authority continued offering staff medical iinsurance cover to employees and

their famfies. The medical insulance package consists of in-patient outpatient,

matemity dental and optica-l cover. This is meant to enhance employee health and

wellness, which in tum boosts employee morale, hence increased Productivity.

. Other well::ress programs induded offering psychosocial support to staff. KEMSA

rnanaged to bring on board a counsellor to offer psychosocial support services arrd

other EAPs to staff, as at 30th June 2022, 213 members of staff had received the

services both in group arrd one on one basis. This was aimed at improving staff

mental wellness.

0 COVID-l9 Measureg

. In a bid to prevent the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Authority initiated

the following activities

o Testing of staff for COVID-19

o Vaccination of staff against COVID-19

o Provision of face masks to staff

o Provision of sanitizers

o Ensuring that there is adequate water and soap for washing hands

o Disinfecting of work places.

g) Divereify and InclusivitY

r The Authority ascribes to the . Goverrurrent requirements on diversity and

inclusivity in all its programs arrd activities. The Authority has set up the following

xlv



Corrurrittees to address issues of diversity and incrusivity: Gender Mairutreaming
Committee, Nationar Cohesion and values Committee and Disability
Mainstreaming Com-rrLittee.

h) Ethics and Integrity

o The Authority is committed to enhancing ethics and integrity in its operations.
This enhances the protection of KEMSA's assets and prevents fraud. The following
initiatives have been put in prace: Appointment of rntegrity Assurance officers,

f.u*, and sensitization of emproyees on integrity and FiJling and submission
of wealth Declaration Forms for new/exiting employees and once every two years

by all employees.

i) Employee Relatione

r The Authority ensured that cordial employee relations were maintained during
the year under review. The fonowing initiatives were impremented to enhance

employee relations: Resolution of employee grievances as received &
Appointurent and operationalization of a Disciplinary Com-rdttee.

HEALTH & SAFETY POLICY STATEMENT

KEMSA is comrritted to using sound and resporsible practices to safeguard the health,

s#ety and welfare of its employees, contractors, customers and any other person affected

by its operations.

occupational Hea-lth and safety issues sha-ll be addressed in systematic, proactive and

explicit manner to ensure that they are an integral part of day to day business of the

organization.

To fu,lfil this corrunitnent KEMSA undertakes to:

D Conform to the set company policies and comply with applicable national and

intemational regulations and code of practice governing occupational health and

salety;

xlvi
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a F Ensure the managenent properly supervises all processes and systerns of work

' that are designed to take account of health and safety and are held accountable for

results on saJety perfomrance by setting yearly key performance indicators;

> SupPort each employee with appropriate s#ety and health awareness training,

supervision and other resources as necessary to enable safe performance of work

in accordance with comPanY PolicY;

P Facilitate the necessary forums where employees can raise issues of health and

safety tfuough the established Health arrd Safety Comrrrittees;

F Encourage consultation with and active participation of employees by

continuously seeking to improve the performance of health and safety systems in

place;

F Ensure the provision and maintenance of adequate resources to take care of safety

issues;

F Ensure that persons in workplace take resporsibility for aspects of OH&S over

which they have control and provide a forum for continuous identificadon of

workplace hazards;

F Protect the health and safety of identified vulnerable employees induding the

disabled staff, pregnant and nursing womerv and ensure they perform work

appropriate to their physical capacity and those that pose no health hazards;

F Ensure visitors, contractors and customers abide by laid down safety health

grridelines and procedures on site;

F Consult with external experts and other interested parties on OH&S issues; and

F Ensure the corporate health and s#ety management system is fully implemented

within its business.

This will be done through total commitrrent and participation from all levels of

employees.

The effective of OH&S management system shall be regularly reviewed in Iight of

legislative and organizational changes.

xlvii



over the years, the Authority has continuousry retained a skined team with depths of
experience and ability to execute on our core mandate and objectives. we continud to
attract develop and retain the right talent while inculcating a performance-based culture.

Continuous improvement is the cornerstone of our high-performance culture, which
drives us to leam, change and improve. During the year, we continued conducting
wellness programs covering staff, their immediate families and the neighbouring
communities.

The Authority varues its human capitar and focuses on providing an enabring

environment and maintaining a work force that is equipped with required knowledge,
skills and competencies to enable the Authority achieve its mandate and develop its
workforce.

iv) Market place practices
a) Responsible competition practice

KEMSA believes in fair competition in procurement and tendering. procurement at
KEMSA is conducted strictly in adherence to the public procurement and Disposal Act,
20-15- KEMSA has atigned to the Treasury's Integrated Financiar Management
Information system (IFMIS) portal further enhancing procurement in an open and
transparent manner that encourages open competition and open to public exarrrination

and review. This process enables KEMSA to obtain high quality goods and services at
reasonable cost.

KEMSA has continuously done market assessment on pricing to ensure that prices of
essential commodities remain considerably low. we have also been increasing our
product range with an aim of availing more commodities for specialized categories e.g.

oncology, Urology, Laboratory, Theatre and orthopedics. KEMSA greatly values her
customers by providing quality and affordable health products and technologies geared

towards sustainability of a long and mutually beneficial relationship. we focus on low
cost and best value of the products and services we provide to our customers.

xlviii

o

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022



o

Kenya Medical Supplies AuthoritY
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the yea r ended June 30, 2022

KEMSA is free from political interference as it is governed by an Act of parliament and

other reievant legislation. Governance at KEMSA is overseen by an independent Board

of Directors. At KEMSA we recognize that adherence to the principles of competition

while dealing with our customers is essential to the maintenance of the integrity of the

Authority. KEMSA seeks to achieve responsible commercial success and comPete on a

level playing ground, we are committed to promoting fair competition and healthy

marketplaces. We operate in compliance with the applicable competition laws in the

country. KEMSA prides itself as a market leader and being a govemment agency is

committed to making health products and technologies affordable by offering the best

prices in the market whilst enhancing customer experience.

b) Responsible aupply chain and supplier relations

KEMSA has put in place long term framework contracts currently two years for supply

of Health Products and Technologies (Health Products and Technologies). Managing of

relationship with suppliers is key in ensuring that contract terrns are met by both parties.

KEMSA has implemented art automated supplier performance measurement tool that

helps track performance of each supplier against outlined key performance indicators

(KPIs). The KPIs aim at measuring delivery timeliness, quantity, quality and cost

Suppliers who perform well are eligible to be awarded future contracts at KEMSA.

Punitive measure aJso applies to suppliers whose performance is below the required

tlueshold. Such measures include and not limited to Contract terminatiorL Liquidation

of Performance Secuity and debarment in line with the procurement law.

KEMSA has adopted the practice of holding supplier conferences at least twice a year.

During these conferences, all suppliers who have runrLing contracts with KEMSA are

invited for an open discussion, highlight supply challenges and discuss ways to improve

supplier performance. Furthermore, regular meetings are held with suppliers

experiencing supply challenges and a way forward is agreed upon KEMSA has a

dedicated contract management unit whose main mandate is to continuously track

performance of each supplier against the contractual tern-rs. Continuous communication
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through letters, e-mails and even telephone conversation provide a plaform where there

is continuous update and feedback from the supplier on the status of their contrhct

Timely and effective intemal processing of relevant documents such as purchase orders

which is electronic, inspection and acceptance letters ald contracts agreements have a

significant impact on supplier performance. This facilitates delivery of products, timely
bank financing where necessary.

c) Reeponsible marketing and advertiaement

As part of the marketing and advertising of KEMSA's Health products and rechnotogies,

we always consider the intended recipients and those exposed to the messages and

ensure that our marketing cou-rnunications do not include harmful, illegal, immoral,
irresponsible or misleading content. we ensure that the content cormunicated to
consumers are appropriate and carry with them all the sensitivity required. we
endeavour to maintain ethical marketing practices by focusing on provision of products

that are responsive to customer needs. we build and maintain customer relationships

with honesty, integrity and loyalty while abiding by the iaw. one of the most important

points to note is the KEMSA ensures that the independence of health professionals is

maintained at aII times while markethg and advertising. we do this by not giving any

gift or benefit in kind that wou-ld influence the prescripdon patterns of healthcare

professionals. our marketing starf ensure that any interactions with healthcare

professionals is focused on informing health professionals about products, providing

scientific and educational information and supporting medicai research and education.

such interactions always endeavour to benefit the patients and to enhance the practice of
medicine. when advertising and promotion we encourage the appropriate use of
pharmaceutical products with no exaggeration. we also seek approvals {or the

advertisement materials from PPB whenever we need the Hprs advertised. we DoN,T
advertise prescription-only medicines to the general public.

o
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o d) Product stewardshiP

product stewardship for KEMSA means that our products satisfy the highest quality

standards and are safe for the consumers. KEMSA endeavours to maintain product

stewardship through rigorous screening of our supplier stakeholders while targeting on

minimizing the health, safety, environmental, alrd social impacts of the products and

promotion of our customer's rights to basic needs, safety, inforrnatio& representatiory

consumer education and a healthy environmenl All products r:ndergo exteruive quality

assurance along the entire value chain induding Post djstdbution surveillance in the

interest of product safety. We strictly adhere to local and intemational standards, product

specifications and legal requirements. we are committed to strict adherence to our

systems and procedules as exPlicated in our Quality Management System'

The KEMSA Laboratory is now highly regarded both nationally and intemationally for

its teclmical competence to test quality of medical Ploducts before they are released to

the public. KEMSA also works with National Qualit)'Control Laboratory' Kenya Bureau

of Standatds (KEBS) and other legulatory bodies to ensure patients safety. More

importantly, IGMSA ensures that only those products that are authorized to be in the

market by Pharmacy and Poisons Board are Procured. Recently the Authority expanded

its laboratory to ensure that latest equipment is in piace to assure quality of conrmodities

before distribution to various health facilities'

v) Corporate Social Responsibility/Community Engagements

In realizing KEMSA's Strategic Objective No. 4; to develop and strengthen stategic

alliances and partnerships for improved health supply chain systems, ItrjrFY 2021. / 2022

the Authority allocated Kshs. 2,000,000 towards Corporate Social Responsibility. The

funds were used to complete three initiatives which were kicked off in the previous

Financial Year as envisaged in KEMSA's Corporate Social Responsibility (csR) poliry

2O1g - 2024. Our approved Annual CSR Work Programme for the year was however

greatly affected by the negative publicity generated by irregular Covid-19 Health

ti



Products and Technology Procurement. Below is a tabulation of the activities carried out
in the reporting period.

o

Ksh

495,000/ -

Ksh

949,7s0/ -

KEMSA and

Nakuru

County

Govemment

It is skategica.lly located a stone tfuow

away from the area earmatked for

setting up arL airport.

The only public health facility within a

radius of 1.2 kilometers.

lii

January

2022

1 Msambtumi

County

Referral

HospitaL

(Phase 2)

KEMSA and

KwaIe

County

Govemment

t is the largest hospital in Kwale

county.

Categorized as a Ievel five facility.

Serves a population of more than

23,307 people.

Scope of Work

Fitting additional racks, installation of
two air conditioners (24000 BpU) to

create a cool environment and co-

branding.

I lvfsambweni

KwaIe

County

January

2022

Mtuapa

Health

Centre

Pharmaceut

ical Store

Renoztation

KEMSA and

Kilifi County

It is categorized as a health center.

Serves a catchment area with a

population of about 53,000 people.

Plars are underway to upgrade it to a

Sub County Hospital.

Scope of Work

Irutallation of air conditioners

Shelving

Painting and co-branding

Replacement of iron sheets

Paving the slab

Electrical works

Mtwapa

Health

Centre

January

2022

3 Nyofioro

Health

Centre,

Nakunt

Nyonjoro,

Nakuru

County

Kshs

500,000,/-
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Msambweni Pharmaceutical Store, Kwale

Before After

riii

Ac
ll&hl

llr?rfr llI

Serves a population of more than

10,000 people.

Scope of Work

Setting up a laboratory.

Built working tops, shelves, Partition,

sinks, fridge, wash bottles, PSA Ships.

Gluco Strips, Training Raclg H.B

Cuvettes, Blood Grouping A, B, D,

Drying Rack, FlPylori AG Skips, Hrs

Swabs, Graadset Violet 500 Ml,Rotator,

Vaccutainer edta, Vaccutainer redtops,

urinalysis strips, pregnancy test stiPs/

stool containers, microscope slides,

Rheumatoid factor, Brucekceka lait,

trolley, timer, dryer, acetol among

others item.

Painting and co-branding

I
ID-t.iG

I
a
\r

t'
"t
3.

r
t

a
I'f.

.|l

,l
I

ll __

,

ir
t

?'i;;

r;

Total cost for Phase 1 and 2 Kshs 992,000
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Mtroapa Health Centre pharmaceutical Store Renoaation
Before After

I

Total cost of Phase
.1. 

and 2 uas Ksh 1,449,250/-.

Nyonjoro Health Centre, Nakuru

Before

Total cost for Phase 1 and 2 Ksh L,000,000/-.

Benefits of Corporate Social Ilesponsibilitv For KEMSA
o Visibility and improved reputation of the Authority
. Enhanced service delivery

. Make the world a better place

. Make KEMSA a public sector role model

Building relationships with key stakeholders

tsa
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o 10. Report of the Directors

The directors submit this report together with the financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2022, which show the state of Kenya Medical Supplies Authority's affairs'

i) PrincipalActivities

The authority's principal activities are;

a) To procure, warehouse and distribute drugs and medical supplies for the

prescribed public health programs, the national strategic reserve stock reserve,

prescribed essential health packages and national referral hospitals

b) To establish a network of storage, packaging and distribution facilities for the

provision of drugs and medical supplies to health institutions.

c) To enter into partnership with or establish frameworks with county Goverrulents

for purposes of providing services in procuremen! warehousing, distribution of

drugs and medical supplies.

d) Collect information and provide regular reports to the national alrd county

governments on the status and cost effectiveness of procurement, the distribution

and value of prescribed essentia.l medical supplies delivered to health facilities,

Stock status and on any other aspect of supply system and performance that may

be required by stakeholders.
' e) Support county governments to establish and maintain appropriate supply chain

systems for drugs and medical supplies.

ii) Results

The resnlts Kenya Medical Supplies Authority for the year ended lr:ne 30,2022 are set

out on pages 1-116.
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iii) Directors o
The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on pages
viii - xi. During the year Two Directors resigned and rwo were appointed with effect
from 18s March 2022

iv) Surplus remission

In accordance with Regulation 219 (2) of the pubric Financial Management (National
Government) Regulations, regulatory entities shan remit into Consoridated Fund, ninety
per centum of its surplus funds reported in the audited financial statements after the end
of each financial year.

The Kenya Meilical supplies Authority Made a iteficit of Ksh 2,997,7?s,421. duing the year
(Fy 2020/2027 surplus of Ksh. 407,707,s39). The balance of funds of the Authority at the
ead of the FinancialYear, as stateil in KEMSA Act 2073, shalt be retained for the purposes

for which the Authority was establisheil, hence no renission maile to the Coasoliilated
Funil.

Auditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Kenya Medical supplies
Autlrority (KEMSA) in accordance with Article 229 or the Constitution of Kenya and the
Public Audit Act 2015 to carry out the audit of the Kenya Medical supplies Authority
(KEMSA) for te year f period ended June 30, 2022.

By Order of the Board

Fredrick Wanyonyi

Corporate Secretary/Secretary to the Board
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o L1. Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 and Kenya Medical Supplies

Authority Act of 25th Janu ary 2013 section 17 requires the Directors to PrePare financial

statements in respeci of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA), which give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Authority at the end of the finarrcial year

and the operating results of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for that

year. The Directors are also required to ensure that IGMSA keeps proper accounting

records which disclose with reasonable acorracy of the finarrcial position of the Kenya

Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA). The Directors are also responsible for

saleguarding the assets of the Authority.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of Kenya Medical

Supplies Authority (KEMSA)'s financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) as at the end of the

financial year ended fitne, 2022. This responsibility includes; The Dirbctors are

responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Kenya Medicdl Supplies

Authority (KEMSA)'s financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of

alfairs of the Entity for and as at the end of the financial year (period) ended on )une 30,

2022. This responsibility includes: (i) Maintaining adequate financial management

arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting

period; (ii) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable

accrracy at any time the financial position of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority

(KEMSA); (iii) Designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls relevant to

the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they

are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraudi (iv) Safeguarding

the assets of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authodty (IGMSA); (v) Selecting and applying

appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) Making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances

lvii
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The Directors accept responsibility for the Kenya Medical supplies Authority (KEMSA)

financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies

supported by reasonable alrd prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with

Intemational Public sector Accounting standards (I[5AS), and in the marurer required by

the Public Finance Management Act and the shte corporations Act. The Directors are of

the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Kenya

Medical supplies Authority (IGMSA)'s transactions during the financial year ended lune
30,2027, and oI the financiai position as at that date.

The Directors further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained by

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) which have been relied upon in the

preparation of the financial statements as weII as the adequacy of the systems of internal

financia-l control.

o

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that Kenya Medical supplies

Authority (KEMSA) will not remain a going concem for at least the next twelve months

from the date of this statement

Approval of the financial statements

The Kenya Medical Sup lies Authority (KEMSA)'s financial statements were approved

by the Board on aq o 2022 and signed on its behalf by

Mary Chao Mwadime Terry Kiunge Ramadhani

Chairperson of the Board

lviii
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON KENYA MEDICAL SUPPLIES
AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2022

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

I') n h o n < i rr g ..1 cttu n tu lt i I i tt

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box loo84-oo1oo

NAIROBI

A. Report on the financial statements that considers whether the financial statements are
fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lalvfulness and Effectiveness in use of public resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Control, Risk Management and Governance which
considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal control developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal control, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management AcL,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Medical Supplies
Authority (KEMSA) set out on pages 1 to 102, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June, 2022 and the statement of financial performance, statement of
changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget
and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting



policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229
of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act,2015. I have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose ofthe audit.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) as at 30 June,2022 and
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and do not comply with
the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority Act, 2013 and the Public Finance Management Act,
2012.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. M isc lassificatio n

The following financial statements components were misclassified;

Classification in
Financial
Statements

Fanancial
Statement
Element

Correct
Classification

Amount
(Kshs.)

Work in progress
- Purchase of
Motor vehicles

Slatement
Financial
Position

of Property,
Equipment
Vehicles

Plant and
Motor

36,912,165

Disclosure note -
tax liability

Statement of
Financial
Position

Trade and other
payables from
exchange transactions
- tax liability

1,265,576,505

Operating
activities - credit
notes

Statement
cash flows

of '108,439,677

Operating
activities -
damages,
expiries and
donations

Statement
cash flows

of Not included in
statement - no
outflow movement

the
cash

1,056,356,865

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness, presentation and disclosure of the
above balances as at 30 June,2022 could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Finance lncome

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial
statements reflects finance income of Kshs.s18,452,886. However, the schedule
presented for audit did not indicate the principal amounts, interest rates applied and
details of negotiations with the various financial institutions to arrive at the interest rates.

Report ofthc Audilor-Cenerol on Kenl'a Medical Supplies AuthoriD (KEttS.4) for the year ended 30 June, 202?
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Not included in the
statement - no cash
movement



a
ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of finance income amount of
Kshs.518,452,886 could not be confirmed.

3. lnaccuracies of Land and Buildings

The statement of financial position reflects Property, Plant and Equipment balance of
Kshs.8,440,170,'153 as disclosed in Note 24 (a) to the financial statements. lncluded in
the balance is land at Kshs.1,786,967,270 and buildings at Kshs.1,248,058,816 whose
analysis revealed the following unsatisfactory matters;

i. The land balance is not supported by valuation reports while two parcels of land in
lsiolo and Meru of unknown value have been omitted.

ii. Warehouse buildings in Mombasa used for storage of medical commodities were
omitted.

iii. The land balance includes Kshs.284,538,002 for seven (7) parcels of land whose
original title documents were not provided for audit.

iv. lnterviews with management revealed that a parcel of land in Kisumu municipality
valued at Kshs.25,000,000 has been encroached by a private developer, acquired
ownership rights but the matter is under investigation by Directorate of Criminal
lnvestigation.

v. A parcel of land in Kakamega municipality measuring 0.9852 hectares valued at
Kshs.7,500,000 was exchanged for a parcel of land valued at Kshs.3,000,000.
However, details of the exchange were not provided for audit review and both
parcels have been disclosed in the financial statements.

vi. Physical verification in January, 2023 revealed that two parcels of land in Nyeri
town measuring approximately 0.56 hectares were partially fenced exposing it to
encroachment and undisclosed developer had erected a temporary fence on the
unfenced portion of land. Although management indicated the matter is being
pursued, there was no document on its progress.

vii. The land balance includes four parcels of land in Mombasa, Kisumu, Kakamega
and Garissa amounting to Kshs.1 1 5,000,000 which have not been surveyed.

viii. lncluded in the land balance is a parcel of land situated at Embakasi in Nairobi
acquired in August, 2016 at a cost of Kshs.1 ,980,000,000 while the financial
statements reflects a balance of Kshs.'1 ,232,429,268 resulting to unexplained
reduction in land value of Kshs.747 ,570,732.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, valuation and fair statement of land and buildings
balance of Kshs.3,035,026,086 as at 30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed.

4. UnaccountedScanners

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.8,440,170,153 as disclosed in Note 24 (a) to the financial statements. The balance
includes office equipment balance of Kshs.43,549,295 out of which additions were
Kshs.1 1 ,61 3,558. Analysis revealed additions of Kshs.3,226,593 for only four (4)

Report of the Auditor-General on Ken1,o Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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scanners that were delivered instead of eight (B) scanners procured and paid for at
Kshs.8,208,800 resulting to unaccounted nor explained variance of Kshs.4,982,207.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of office equipment balance of
Kshs.43,549,295 could not be confirmed.

5. lnaccuracies in Trade Creditors

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.8,256,459,842 as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial
statements. However, the amount excluded unpaid goods and services as at
30 June, 2022 amounting to Kshs.22,690,890. ln addition, Kshs.2,909,006,616 relates to
supplies of medical commodities, distribution costs and other general operations from
sixty-eight (68) suppliers but the respective invoices indicating the goods, works or
services rendered were not provided for audit. Further, the amount includes
Kshs.1 ,081,672,924 on procurement of medical commodities from thirty (30) suppliers
whose invoices were in multiple currencies but the supplier statements did not indicate
the local and the foreign currency and the applicable exchange rates.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and fair statement of trade and other payables from
exchange transactions balance of Kshs.8,256,459,842 as at 30 June,2022 could not be
confirmed.

6. lnaccuracies in lnventories

The statement of financial position reflects inventories balance of Kshs.1 3,962 ,897 ,325
as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements. However, the following unsatisfactory
matters were noted.

6.1. lnventoryVariance

The balance includes Kshs.8,233,257 ,797 for six hundred and one (601) stock items
whose analysis of schedules revealed a balance Kshs.3,644,778,750 resulting to
unexplained variance of Kshs.4,588 ,479,047 . ln addition, the amount includes
Kshs.1 ,405,592,596 for co-financing commodities whose supporting schedules reflects
valuation of Kshs.999,646,838 resulting to unreconciled variance of Kshs.405,945,758.
Further, the inventories balance omitted 500,712 units of twentythree (23) medical
commodities of undetermined value.

6.2. lmproperAdjustment

The inventories balance was arrived after adjusting Kshs.6,130,735 for untraced
commodities in the warehouse, Kshs.12,756,385 for excess issues to undisclosed health
facilities and Kshs.29,951,849 for damaged stock which should have been expensed.

6.3 Unreconciled Stock lssuance

The amount includes sixty-two (62) medical commodities whose available stock for issue
was 11 ,727 ,7 38 units valued at Kshs.794,1 37,087 but the warehouse issue report
indicated issuance of 1 1 ,820,490 units valued at Kshs.842,510,836 resulting to
unexplained nor reconciled over issuance of 92,752 units valued at Kshs.48,373,749.

Report ofthe Auditor-Ceneral on Kenya Medical Supplies Authori\, (KEMSA) for lhe yeor ended 30 June, 2022
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a
6.4 Use of Wrong Valuation Method

Re-computation of inventories using the lower of cost and net realizable value revealed
a balance of Kshs.4,309,172,340 resulting to unreconciled variance of
Kshs.9,653,724,985.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, valuation and fair statement of inventories balance of
Kshs.13,962,897,325 could not be confirmed.

7. Unsupported Sales Revenue

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects sales revenue of Kshs.6,317,198,727 nel ol
credit notes of Kshs.108,439,677 for goods returned due to either being damaged on
transit, not ordered by the customers or had quality issues but they were not traced in the
warehouse management systems. ln addition, the damaged commodities and those with
quality issues were not physically verified and were not traced in the goods returns ledger.
ln addition, sales adjustments of Kshs.974,495,736 were done without evidence of credit
notes/ entries explaining the reasons for adjustments and sales of Kshs.4,990,278 made
ten (10) health facilities which were not invoiced.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of sales revenue amount of
Kshs.6,3'17,198,727 for the year ended 30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed

8. Unconfirmed Purchase of Medical Commodities

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects cost of sales of Kshs.7,667,817,778 out of
which items worth Kshs.56,582,084 were sold at Kshs.68,351 ,228. However, these items
were not in the opening inventory balance and although they were assigned purchase
order numbers, there was no evidence of details of the suppliers and dates of supplies.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, validity and completeness of cost of sales amount of
Kshs.56,582,084 for the year ended 30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed.

9. Omitted lntensive Care Unit (lCU) Patient Ventilators

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects cost of sales of Kshs.7,667,817,778. However,
the expenditure omits Kshs.57,400,000 for twenty-one (21) ventilators purchased from
two (2) suppliers using funds from Ministry of Health. ln addition, a donation five (5)
lntensive Care Unit Patient (lCU) ventilators valued at Kshs.5,472,560 was not reflected
under medical commodity fund. Further, these ventilators were issued to fifteen (15)
counties but details of the specific health facilities that received them were not indicated
in the issue report and installation reports were not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of Kshs.62,872,560 expenditure
on ventilators could not be confirmed.

'10. Undisclosed Liability

Note 26 to the financial statements reflects trade and other payables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.8,256,459,842. However, an amount of Kshs.29,370,267
received from unidentified customers was not disclosed as a liability. ln addition, this
balance was not supported by a schedule indicating the opening balance, receipts,

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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amounts transferred from the unidentified/suspense account to the specific customer and
closing balance.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of receivables from exchange O
transactions balance of Kshs.29,370,267 could not be confirmed.

11. Un-approved Exchange of Parcels of Land

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.8,440,170,153 as disclosed in Note 24 (a) to the financial statements. The balance
includes land balance of Kshs.l ,786 ,967 ,270 out of which a parcel of land along
commercial street Nairobi measuring 0.1329 with net book value of Kshs.151 ,538,002
was exchanged with a private company's land measuring approximately 0.7676 in the
same location of undetermined value. ln addition, the lease of this parcel lapsed on 30
June, 2019 and there was no evidence of renewal. Further, there was no evidence of
approval of the exchange transaction by the Cabinet Secretaries responsible for Health
and the National rreasury. This was contrary to section 1 3(1)(c) of the State corporations
Act, 2015 which states that 'The assets of a state corporation may be disposed of-by
way of sale or otherwise with the approval of the Minister and the Treasury where such
disposal has not been taken into account in the estimates.

ln the circumstances, the valuation and ownership of parcel of land with net book value
of Kshs.1 51 ,538,002 as at 30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed.

12. Unconfirmed Receivables from County Governments

Note 21 to the financial statements reflects receivables from exchange transactions of
Kshs.5,642,303,360 out of which Kshs.2,819,806,723 relates to county governments.
However, only three (3) counties with a balance of Kshs.193,792,617 responded to audit
circularization resulting to unconfirmed balance of Kshs.2,626,014,106 bythird parties. ln
addition, there was no evidence of half and end of the financial year circularization as
required by Paragraph 2.14 ol lhe Kenya Medical Supplies Authority Credit Policy 20 14.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of receivables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.2,626,014,106 could not be confirmed.

13. Long Outstanding Receivables

Note 21 to the financial statements reflects receivables from exchange transactions of
Kshs.5,642,303,360 out of which Kshs.399,326,318 relates to ten (10) customers which
has been outstanding for more than three hundred and sixty (360) days with no agreed
payment plan. ln addition, there was no provision for bad and doubtful debts contrary to
Paragraph 216 of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority Credit Policy 2014 which
requires adequate provision for bad and doubtful debts for any outstanding debts above
three hundred and thirty (330) days.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and recoverability of receivables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.399,326,318 could not be confirmed.
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The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA)
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Material Uncertainty to Going Concern

The statement of financial performance reflects a deficit of Kshs.2,991,725,43'l in

comparison with surplus of Kshs.40't ,701 ,539 for the comparative period leading to a
decline in the revenue reserves from Kshs.8,851,950,562 in 202012021 to
Kshs.5,860,225,131 in the current period. lf the trend continues into the foreseeable
future, the Authority may not be able to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

ln the circumstances, the Authority's sustainability of procurement, warehousing and
distribution of drugs and medical supplies is heavily dependent on continued support by
the Government, donors and creditors.

My opinion is not modified with respect to the above matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

1. Failure to Purchase Global Fund Commodities

During the year under review, Kshs.1 ,835,607,005 was budgeted to procure, warehouse
and distribute program commodities under the co-financing requirements. However,
review of records revealed that only commodities worth Kshs.1 ,366,506,543 were
procured resulting to underfunding of Kshs.469,1OO,462.

ln the circumstances, Management may have failed to procure, warehouse and distribute
enough program commodities as intended by the donors.

2. Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
the Financial Statements and Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources. However, the Management has not resolved the issues or given any
explanation for failure to adhere to the provisions of the Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board templates.
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REPORT ON LAWFULNESS
RESOURCES

AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the constitution and based on the audit procedures
performed, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse
opinion and Basis for conclusion on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of public
Resources sections of my report, based on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. lncomplete Construction of Capital Work in Progress

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.8,440,170,'153 as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements. The amount
includes capital work in progress balance of Kshs.S,177,536,340 for construction of
KEMSA modern warehouse and office block. However, the following unsatisfactory
matters were noted,

i. The amount includes interest on delayed payments of Kshs.17,036,034 but details on
the certified amounts, the number of days outstanding and computation of this interest
were not provided for audit.

ii. The contract was for a duration of one hundred and eight two weeks (182) ending
25 September,2020 but physical verification in the month of December 2022 about
twenty-seven months later, revealed that the project is incomplete. ln addition, the
contract sum was Kshs.3,079,998,860 but as at 30 June,2022 Kshs.3,847,352,076
had been paid resulting to excess or price variation of Kshs.767,353,216 of 25%.

iii. The Authority changed the initial floor finishing from power float finish estimated at
Kshs.3,393,500 to epoxy floor surfaces at Kshs.100,200,800.00 resulting to a price
increase of Kshs.96,807,300 without justification.

iv. Further, the change of underground water tank from initial cost in the bills of quantities
of Kshs.10,000,000 to Kshs.32,779,190 exceeded the recommended 25% variation.

v. Also, gate house provisional sum of Kshs.3,480,000 increased to Kshs.14,885,701 or
328% variation.

vi. ln addition, the contract for ventilation, smoke vents and air conditioning were awarded
at a sum of Kshs.38,367,131 and audit inspection in December, 2022 revealed that
the inflammable warehouse was operational but the smoke vents were not fixed.

vii. Retention amount of Kshs.384,735,208 equivalent to 10% of Kshs.3,847,352,076
payments made was not withheld.

ln the circumstances, value for money on Kshs.5,177,536,340 for construction of KEMSA
modern warehouse and office could not be confirmed.
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2. Missing lnvoices from Suppliers

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial reflects a
balance of Kshs.8,256,459,842 in respect to trade and other payables from exchange
transactions. The amount includes trade creditors - not invoiced receipts balance of
Kshs.437,723,132 (2021 - Kshs.2,588,017,5O7). However, for over eighteen (18) months
after the procurement of Covid-19 items, no invoices were raised despite a payment of
Kshs.1 ,465,017,506. This is contrary to Regulation 99(3) of the Public Finance
Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 states that'Every entry in the
accounts shall be supported by a voucher or other approved document gazetted by the
Cabinet Secretary containing the full details, clear narrations and particulars of the item
or items to which it relates'.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. lrregular Payment of Full Salaries

The board of directors issued a directive on 04 November,2021 to three hundred and
ninety-seven (397) employees to work from home and who continue to draw their full
salaries and allowances which amounted to Kshs.365,823,891 . This was contrary to
Section 197(1)(i) of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 provide a public officer
employed by the national government, or a national government entity commits an
offence of financial misconduct if, without laMul authority, the officer incurs wasteful
expenditure on behalf of that government or entity.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law and the value for money on
Kshs.365,823,891 paid to employees working from home could not be confirmed.

4. Un-Procedural Extension of Employee Contracts

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs of Kshs.1 ,223,659,186
as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements. The amount includes Kshs.7,479,840
paid to fifty-six (56) employees whose contracts had lapsed and were being renewed after
every month instead of after a minimum of three (3) months without explanations. This
was contrary Section 9(1)(a) of the Employment Acl, 2OO7 which states that a contract of
service is for a period or a number of working days which amount in the aggregate to the
equivalent, of three months or more.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of law.

5. lrregular Procurement Through Call-Off Orders

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects cost of sales of Kshs.7,667,817 ,778 oul of
which Kshs.506,577,959 relates to goods procured through call off orders which were
received after the scheduled delivery dates. ln addition, the call off orders include
Kshs.349,246,671 whose framework contracts had expired at the time the call off orders
were made. This was contrary to Section 114(4) of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015 which states that; For the purposes of subsection (3)(a), "call-offs
order" means an order made using a framework agreement with one or more contractors,
suppliers or consultants for a defined quantity of works, goods, consultancy covering
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terms and conditions
req uirements.

including price that users require to meet the immediate

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

6. Unlawful use of Direct Procurement - Non-Pharmaceuticals

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects cost of sales of Kshs.7,667,817 ,778 out of
which Kshs.1 ,940,300,934 relates to non-pharmaceutical commodities out of
Kshs.60,261,197 were direct procurements. However, the commodities did not meet the
conditions set for direct procurement under section 103 of the Public Procurement and
Asset Disposal Act, 2015 neither did the accounting officer report to the Public
Procurement Regulatory Authority within fourteen days after the notification of the award
contrary to Regulation 90(1)(b) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal
Regulations, 2020.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

7. Over Procurements

Note 23 to the financial statements reflects inventory balance of Kshs. l3,962,897,325.
However, one hundred and fifty-seven (157) medical commodities amounting to
Kshs.1 ,842,162,067 were procured against the approximate annual demand of
Kshs.590,791 ,788 resulting to over procurement of Kshs.1 ,251 ,370,278. This was
contrary to Regulation 140(1) of the Public Finance Management (National Government)
Regulations,2015 states that 'Accounting Officer shall be responsible for the proper
custody, care and use of government inventories under their control'

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

8. U nder-Performance of Contracts

Note 9 to the financial statements reflects revenue earned from rendering of services to
Global Fund of Kshs.512,669,708. A company was awarded to supply 215,000 packs of
antiretroviral (ARV) medicines worth USD 3,165,660 or Kshs.347,399,528 but only
90,000 packs were delivered and certified by the inspection and acceptance committee
to be the full quantity ordered. The variance of '125,000 packs of ARVs amounting to
Kshs.20'1 ,976,470 remained undelivered as at 30 June 2022, fifteen ( 15) months after the
contract was awarded. This was contrary to section 5.1-1(e) of the Global Fund Grant
Regulations, 20'14 which stipulates that; "Contracts shall be awarded only to contractors
that possess the ability to successfully perform the contracts" Further, Section 140 of
Public procurement and Disposal Act, 2015 stipulates that "{he contractor shall be liable
to liquidation damages for delayed performance."

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of law.

9. Loss on Sale of Covid-19 Commodities
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Note 8 to the financial statements reflects a gross loss of Kshs.1 ,350,6'1 7,051 out of which
Kshs."l ,271,897,145 relates to loss on sale of Covid-19 commodities. This loss relates to
sale of four (4) commodities at Kshs.431,68l ,615 procured at a cost of
Kshs.1,703,578,760. This was contrary to Section 72(1) ot the Public Management
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Finance Acl, 2012 which states that, "The accounting officer for a national government
entity shall- (a) be responsible for the management of the entity's assets and liabilities;
and (b) manage those assets in a way which ensures that the national government entity
achieves value for money in acquiring, using and disposing of those assets."

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

10. lrregular Extension of Contracts

Note 9 to the financial statements reflects rendering fees revenue of Kshs.787,689,106
in respect of procurement, warehousing and distribution of third-party commodities where
the services of clearing and forwarding were procured at a price of USD 388,305 or
Kshs.43,101,855 for a period of three (3) months ending 0B October, 2019 but renewed
four (4) times up to 30 June,2O22.ln addition, Note 13 to the financial statements reflects
consulting fees of Kshs.37,910,274 out of which Kshs.19,941,120 was for consultancy
services on board support and coordination services whose contracts were extended for
more than three (3) months. This was contrary to Section 88 (3) of the Public Procurement
and Asset Disposal Act, 20'15 which requires contract extension be restricted to not more
than thirty days (30) and may only be done once.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

11. Award of Tenders above the Prevailing Market Price.

Note 9 to the financial statements reflects revenue earned from rendering of services
amount of Kshs.787,689,106 out of which Kshs.S12,669,708 relates to fees earned to
procure, warehouse and distribute Global Fund commodities. However, the Authority
awarded tenders amounting to Kshs.1 ,360,073,270 at rate higher than the prevailing
market price resulting to incurring an excess amount of Kshs.84,255,585. This was
contrary to Section 5.1 1(0 of the Global Fund Grant Regulations, 2014 which stipulates
that "No more than a reasonable price (as determined, for example, by a comparison of
price quotations and market prices) shall be paid to obtain goods and services."

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

'12. Unapproved Fees for Services Rendered

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects total sales revenue of Kshs.6,317,198,727
being revenue from sale of various medical commodities. However, the prices of these
commodities were only reviewed by a pricing committee and were not presented to the
board for approval before implementation. This is contrary to Section 6 (2) (d) of the
Kenya Medical Supplies Authority Act 2013 states that'Without prejudice to the generality
of the foregoing, the Board shall have power to-levy fees for services rendered by the
Authority as may be determined from time to time by the Board'.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of law.

1 3. Extension of Tender Validity Period

Note B to the financial statements reflects cost of sales balance of Kshs.7,667,619,015
out of which Kshs.2,660,997,894 relates to procurement of medical commodities on
contracts extended for sixty-nine (69) suppliers. The Authority extended these contracts

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2022

11



for more than thirty days and continued to trade with the suppliers without competitive
bidding or giving notice of extension to each of the person who submitted the tender. This
is contrary to Section BB (2) and (3) which requires contract extension be not more than
thirty days and a notice of extension be given to each of the persons who submitted the
tender.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of Law.

14. lrregular Use of Framework Contracting

Management discussion and analysis under Section B to the financial statements reflects
total procurement of Kshs.29,097,000,000 out of which Kshs.21,182,231,387 was
procurement through framework contracting but there was no list of vendors undertaking
these contracts and there was no evidence of mini competition among registered
suppliers. ln addition, after the first year of award, there was no evidence of conducting a
value for money assessment to determine whether the terms designated in the framework
agreement were still competitive. Further, suppliers through restricted method of
Kshs.749,364,646, open tender of Kshs.2,448,96,611 and direct procurement method of
Kshs.1 ,307,1 1 7,628 were continuously engaged for two (2) years under framework
agreements contrary Section 114(1) and (2) of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of law.

15. lnclusion of VAT in Global Fund Commodities

Note 9 to the financial statements reflects revenue earned from rendering of services
amounting to Kshs.787,689,'106. lncluded in this balance is Kshs.512,669,708 in respect
to Global Fund out of which Kshs.1 1,86'1,000 was earned to procure Global Fund HIV
commodities of USD.2,132,400, or Kshs.232,717,555 and VAT amounting to
Kshs.1,636,000 charged. This was contrary to article 3, Section 3.5 of the Global Fund
grant regulations, 2014, which states that the host country for Global Fund should ensure
that all the program commodities are exempted from tax.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

16. Stock out of Medical Commodities

Note 23 to the financial statements reflects inventory balance of Kshs.1 3,962 ,897 ,325.
lnventory records indicated three hundred and sixty-four (364) commodities were stocked
out for an average of two hundred and ninety (290) days while one hundred and seventy-
nine (179) commodities were below the minimum required stock levels resulting to missed
sales of Kshs.3,'l 13,453,816. This was contrary to Regulation 140(1) of the Public
Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that
'Accounting Officer shall be responsible for the proper custody, care and use of
government inventories under their control'.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.
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20. Failure to Maintain a Master Vote Book

The statement of financial performance reflects total expenditure of Kshs.3,083,384,361
which was not supported by a vote book. This was contrary to Regulation 52(1)(d) of the
Public Finance Management (National Government) Regulations,2015, which states
when the AIE is issued by the Ministry or State Department or Agency, the allocation shall
be entered as a commitment in the Ministry's or State Department's or Agency's master
vote book so as to ascertain at all times the availability of uncommitted funds.

ln the circumstance, Management was in breach of the law.

17. Failure to Procure Essential Medical Commodities

Note 26 to the financial statements reflects payables from development partners of
Kshs.4,798,798,971. lncluded in the amount is Kshs.'1 ,270,815,146 for family planning,

nutrition and tuberculosis commodities which had not been utilized for eighteen (18)
months as at December, 2022 while an additional Kshs.1,281 ,580,000 for Antiretroviral
(ARVs), lab reagents, vaccines and blood bags remained unutilized for a period of six (6)

Months. This is contrary to Regulation 214(b) of the Public Financial Management
(National Government) Regulations, 20'15 which requires activities of a corporation be
effective in achieving national objectives and represent value for money for the
expenditure of taxpayer'.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

18. Non-Adherence to Credits Limits

Note 21 to the financial statements reflects receivables from exchange transactions of
Kshs.5,642,303,360 out of which Kshs.5,554,133,989 relates to trade debtors -
receivables with County Governments accounting for Kshs.2,B19,BOG,723 and other
customers Kshs.2,734,327,266. However, the Authority continued to trade with these
customers beyond the 30 to 45 days credit limits period contrary to Paragraph 2.7 ot lhe
Kenya Medical Supplies Authority Credit Policy 20'14. ln addition, the Authority did not
maintain Floating Deposits Funds for credit customers in the KEMSA trading account
where invoices will be drawn from as required by Paragraph 2.8 of the Kenya Medical
Supplies Authority Credit Policy, 2014.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

19. Unaccounted Donations to KEMSA Dispensary

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects cost of sales balance of Kshs.7,667,8'17 ,778.
This balance includes donations of medical commodities of Kshs.221,991 ,558 to eighty-
six (86) health facilities out of which Kshs.23,373,737 relates to donations made to
KEMSA staff dispensary whose physical verification in the month of December, 2022
revealed that they did not exist. This is contrary to paragraph 17.6 of the KEMSA Standard
Operating Procedures, 2018 which requires KEMSA to donate medical commodities upon
request by the customer.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.
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2'1. Failure to Maintain an lmprest Register

Note 13 to the financial statements reflects a balance of Kshs.1 ,689,600,81 I in respect
to use of goods and services which includes an expenditure of Kshs.85,821,747 in
relation to travel, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances. However, an
imprest register to account for imprests issued and surrendered was not maintained. This
was contrary to Regulation 93 ( ) of the Public Finance Management (National
Government) Regulations, 2015 which provides that before issuing temporary imprests
under paragraph (2), the Accounting Officer shall ensure that- (c) the applicant has been
recorded in the imprest register including the amount applied for.

ln the circumstance, Management was in breach of the law.

22. Failure to Open a Retention Bank Account

Note 26 to the financial statements reflects trade and other payables from exchange
balance of Kshs.8,256,459,842 which includes customer retention money of
Kshs.21 ,639,338. However, these funds were comlngled in the Authority's other
operational bank accounts without depositing them in a separate bank account exposing
them to unintended use. This was contrary to Regulation 43 (b) of the Public Finance
Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that "An accounting
officer shall ensure that public funds entrusted to their care are properly safeguarded and
are applied for purposes for only which they were intended and appropriated by the
National Assembly. Further Regulation 33 (f) (ii) states that "Appropriation shall be for a
specific purpose or a specific programme or item of expenditure".

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

23. lrregular lssuance of Medical Commodities as Donations

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects cost of sales balance of Kshs.7,667,817 ,778
out of which Kshs.221 ,991 ,558 was donated to eighty-six (86) health facilities. However,
the expenditure includes donations Kshs.6,'138,171 whose shelf life was more than six
months. This was contrary to Paragraph 17.6 ot the KEMSA Standard Operating
Procedures 2018 requires donations to be for commodities with a remaining shelf life of
less than six months.

24. Delay in Deliveries of Medical Commodities

Note 23 to the financial statements reflects inventories balance of Kshs.13,962,897,325
out of which medical commodities of Kshs.10,918 ,542,2'17 were received beyond the
scheduled delivery timelines. ln addition, commodities amounting to Kshs.2,471,498,717
had not been received by 30 June, 2022 despite lapse of over six (6) months after
ordering them. This was contrary to Regulation 53(1) Public Finance Management
(National Government) Regulations, 2015 states that a local purchase order or local
service order shall be valid for a period of thirty days from the date of issue. (2) Any public
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e
officer who receives goods or services beyond the stipulated period specified in
paragraph (1) commits an offence under the Act.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls) 3000 and 4000. The standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statement
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENTAND
GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, and based on the audit
procedures performed, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis
for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk
Management and Governance sections of my report, lconfirm that internal control, risk
management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Staff Over-Establishment

Review of human resource records revealed approved staff establishment of three
hundred and forty-one (341) position, but the master staff register reflects nine hundred
and sixty-two (962) employees as at 30 June, 2022 resulting to unapproved staffing of six
hundred and twenty-one (621).

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of controls on human resource management
could not be confirmed.

2. Lack of Fuel Register

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services expenditure of
Kshs.1 ,689,600,81 1 as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements. The amount
includes fuel and oil balance of Kshs.29,488,949. However, a fuel register was not
maintained and no reconciliation was performed on the supplier fuel statements. ln
addition, two vehicles fuelled at Ksh.985,428 were not in the asset register and their log
books not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls on fuels and oils could not be
confirmed.

3. Duplicate lnventory Records

The statement of financial position reflects inventories balance of Kshs.13,962,897,325
as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements. However, review of lnformation
Technology (lT) environment revealed creation of duplicate inventory records amounting
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to Kshs.70,224,025. ln addition, the system allowed excess return of inventories from
facilities amounting Kshs.8,839,027. Further, commodities valued at Kshs.42,526,804
with longer shelf life were sold before those with short shelf life against principle of First
Expiry First Out (FEFO).

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of controls on inventory management could not
be confirmed.

4. Undefined Rendering Fee Charges

Note 9 to the financial statements reflects rendering of services of Kshs.787,689,106
being fees charged for procurement, warehousing and distribution. However, a
warehousing fee of 3% on the value of commodities is charged but the contract
agreements do not specify the storage period. ln addition, commodities amounting to
Kshs.8,229,260 from different donors were stored for a period between three and seven
years but only charged at constants rate. Further, there is no standard policy for charging
these services since different partners are charged rates at 8o/o,7o/o and 6% for the same
services.

ln the circumstances, the value for money on procurement, warehousing and distribution
services rendered to the donor partners could not be confirmed.

5. Weaknesses in Delivery System

Note '13 to the financial statements reflects administrative costs of Kshs.842,506,072 out
of which Kshs.786,643,283 relates to distribution costs of medical commodities
amounting to Kshs.1,694,489,668 that were delivered after the due dates with delays
ranging from eight (8) days to two hundred and fifteen days (215) days. ln addition, the
warehouse system indicated goods amounting to Kshs.15,704,410 were delivered to
various health facilities before they were issued from the warehouse and commodities of
Kshs.240,854,066 dispatched to various facilities and hospitals but could not be
confirmed as having been received. Further, some of the delivery notes were not dated,
stamped or signed as proof of delivery.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls of the warehouse system could
not be confirmed.

6. Failure to Hedge Against Foreign Exchange Losses

Note 13 to the financial statements reflects use of goods and services expenditure of
Kshs.1 ,689,600,81 1 out of which Kshs.184,184,990 relates to foreign exchange loss.
However, contracts were entered using foreign currency but payments made through the
Kenyan currency resulting to a foreign exchange loss of Kshs.184,184,900 and there
were no hedging strategies. ln addition, the realized loss was not supported by schedule
indicating the exchange rate both at the invoice date and the payment date.

ln the circumstances, value for money on the foreign exchange loss of Kshs.184,184,990,
could not be confirmed.
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7. Failure to Re-Negotiate Covid-19 Commodities

Note B to the financial statement statements reflects cost of sales of Kshs.7,667,817 ,778
out of which Kshs.1,787,954,354 relates to Covid-19 commodities. The Ministry of Health
approved the disposal of Covid-19 items subject to re-negotiation with suppliers to lower
the quoted prices. However, commodities with quoted price of Kshs.90,000,000 were not
renegotiated.

ln the circumstances, value for money for Covid-19 items quoted at Kshs.90,000,000
could not be confirmed.

L lnefficiencies in Distribution

Note 13 to the financial statements reflects administrative costs of Kshs.842,506,072 out
of which Kshs.786,643,283 relates to distribution costs. Review of dispatch and turn
around reports revealed that distributions were not coordinated with incidences of not
loading tracks to their optimal levels with a view of increasing their frequency to the same
dispatch stations.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal control of the distribution as at
30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed.

9. Procurements Outside E-Procurement System

The statement of management analysis and discussion to the financial statement
indicates procurement of health products and technologies of Kshs.29,097,000,000.
However, there was no evidence to show that e-procurement platform was used to
procure them. This was contrary to executive order No. 2 of 2018 that required all
procuring entities to undertake all their procurement through the e-procurement module.

ln the circumstances, and in view of lack of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
functional modules, the Authority did not procure through e-procurement and did not
achieve the set objectives under pillar number 6 on innovations and technology.

10. Refund of lneligible Expenditure

Note 26 to the financial statements reflects trade and other payables from exchange
transactions of Kshs.8,256,842 which includes Kshs.4,798,798,971 in respect to trade
creditors-development partner's grants. The balance includes Kshs.320,000,000 refund
to the World Bank due to ineligible expenditure resulting from failure to carry out due
diligence on proper procurement process. This was contrary to section 68(1)(a) of the
Public Finance Management Act,2012 which requires an accounting officerfor a national
government entity, Parliamentary Service Commission and the Judiciary be accountable
to the National Assembly for ensuring that the resources of the respective entity for which
he or she is the accounting officer are used in a way that is laMul and authorized.

ln the circumstances, the value for money on refunded expenditure of Kshs.320,000,000
could not be confirmed.
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1'1. Unfulfilled Customer Orders

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects total sales revenue of Kshs.6,317,1 98,727 .f he
Authority received customer orders of Kshs.9,875,931 ,228 from various health facilities.
However, only orders amounting to Kshs.5,34'l ,340,265 or 56% were processed and
distributed resulting to unfulfilled customer orders of Kshs.4,534,590,963 or 44o/o. ln
addition, the processing and distribution of orders took an average of nineteen ( 19) days
against a target of ten (10) days.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal control on servicing customer orders
could not be confirmed.

12. Loss of Revenue

Note B to the financial statement reflects total sales revenue of Kshs.6,317,198,727 which
includes Kshs.1 ,020,631,175 for one hundred and thirteen (113) medical commodities.
However, these commodities should have been sold at Kshs.1 ,494,065,638 hence
resulting to unexplained loss of Kshs.473,434,463. The amount also includes
Kshs.7'I,261,137 for fifty-two (52) medical commodities that had been purchased at
Kshs.87,460,544 resulting to an unexplained loss of Kshs.16,199,407.

ln the circumstances, valued for money on medical commodities sold at
Kshs.1,091,892,312 could not be confirmed.

13. lssues under Universal Health Coverage (UHC)

During the year under review, it was noted that since the year 2018, Kshs.12,766,762,552
had been received for Universal Health Coverage (UHC) commodities but only
Kshs.10,5'19,028,352 was utilized by 30 June, 2022 resulting to a balance of
Kshs.2,247 ,734,200. However, the following unsatisfactory matters were noted;

i. Analysis of UHC supporting schedules revealed a balance of Kshs.1 ,61 9,1 38,203,
resulting to unexplained nor justified variance of Kshs.628,595,997.

ii. The UHC funds were comingled in other operational bank accounts instead of
receiving them in a separate bank account contrary to Regulation 76 (1) of the Public
Finance (National Government) Regulations,2015 which requires each project have
a separate bank account at the Central Bank of Kenya into which all funds shall be
kept.

iii. Donor fund commodities worth Kshs.318,880,601 were erroneously distributed and
accounted under UHC commodities instead of the respective donor.

iv. UHC commodities worth Kshs.3O,857,471 were distributed to seventy-eight (78)
private and faith-based health facilities contrary to a letter Ref: MOH/ADM/1/2/16
VOL1 (70) daled 24 January, 2020 which indicates the beneficiaries of the supplies
be public health facilities whose county management will have signed the
lntergovernmental Participatory Agreement (lPA) with the Ministry.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the yeor ended 30 June, 2022
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15. Expiries of Medical Gommodities

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects cost of sales of Kshs.7,667,817 ,778. lncluded
in this amount is Kshs.1,054,972,887 being expiries of medical commodities. The expiries
include Covid-19 commodities of Kshs.908,890,295 and other medical commodities of
Kshs.146,082,592 but no explanations for large quantity purchases despite low demand.
ln addition, commodities valued at Kshs.3,322,168 expired on transit to the respective
health facilities. Further, face masks and Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) kits
amounting to Kshs.478,620,200 received in June 2O22 were set to expire on
31 July, 2022 without justification for the short shelf life of less than two months. Also,
incineration costs of Kshs.1 ,900,000 for disposing expired stock were incurred with a
likelihood of incurring additional costs to dispose third party expired commodities valued
at Ksh.206,960,047 which are still in the stores.

ln the circumstances, effectiveness of internal controls on management and monitoring
of stock for expiry could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls) 2315 and 2330. The standard requires that lplan and perform the
audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
control, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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v. Physical verification in twenty-six health facilities spread across six (6) counties in the
month of September, 2022 revealed stock out of the GeneXpert cartridges for up to
three months.

ln the circumstances, the efficiency and effectiveness of the Authority to procure, store
and distribute Universal Health Coverage (UHC) products could not be confirmed.

14. Medical Commodities Received Beyond the Acceptable Shelf Life

Note 8 to the financial statements reflects cost of sales of Kshs.7,667,817,778 which
includes Kshs.688,3'16,531 for commodities that were received with a remaining shelf life
of less than six months. These commodities were due for donation in line with Paragraph
17.6 of the KEMSA Standard Operating Procedures 2018 which categories commodities
with a remaining shelf life of less than six months as having short expiry and are
earmarked for donations. ln addition, the warehouse management system could not
generate a report indicating the manufacture date of the commodities.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal control on purchases of medical
commodities could not be confirmed.



misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the t
Authority's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Authority or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
Authority's activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public
money is applied in an effective manner.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Arlicle 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists- Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance review is planned and
performed to express a conclusion with limited assurance as to whether, in all material
respects, the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance with the authorities that govern them in accordance with
the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. The nature, timing and extent of the
compliance work is limited compared to that designed to express an opinion with
reasonable assurance on the financial statements.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and review of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness

Report ofthe Auditor-Ceneral on Kenya Medicol Supplies Authority (KEMSA) for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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o
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatemenls caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Authority's ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Authority to cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA)/or the year ended j0 June, 2022
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I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit. t
I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA n BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

19 April, 2023
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o
L3. Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 june 2022

Note Fv 20zt-2022

Kshs

FX2020-2021

Kshs

Revenue from non-exchange kansactions
Trarsfers from other government entities
Public contributions and donations

Total Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Revem,re from exchange transactions
Net Sales
Rendering of Services
Renta-l Revenue
linance brcome
Other lncome
Total Revenue from exchange kansactions
Tota-l revenue
E;penses

Use of goods and services
Employee costs
Board expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense
Repairs and maintenance
Finance costs

Gain on sale of assets

odlus for the

Total expenses
Other gainy'(losses)

Surplus before tax
Taxation

6

7

1.9

8

9

10
11

72

13

1.4

15

1,6

17

18

106,383,639

100,000,000

6,383,639

(1.,350,619,0s7)

787,689,706
1,298,423

518,452,886

26,392,466

06,786,76s)
89,597,474

7,689,600.877
1.,n3,659;t86

28,107,1.61.

119,7/4,765
21.,734,746

7,707,691

3,083,384,361

2,067,456

(2,991,725,431)

(L991,7X5,431)

131,383,639

125,000,000
6383,639

7,377,',254,m
L,543,484,208

71,205,348
6L6,085,847

64,299,718
3,552,329,297

3,83,712,937

L,847,724,361
.t-,264,329,720

17,681.305
117,830,725
32,677,21L

1.,768,676

3,282,0L7,397

40-t,791,539

401,707,539

0

Disclosure: The Authority is in receipt of a demand note from the Kenya Revenue
Authority for a tax obligation ofSh.3.010. A tax consultant has been engaged and
after reconciliation with KRA the tax owed has reduced to Sh. 1.1 Billion. A
repayment of Sh. 50 Million pet month has been reached with the fust instalment
alread settled in Au t2022

I
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14. Statement of Financial position as at 30 lune 2022 o

3

Note

Finalcial Year

202y2022
Kshs

Financial Year

2020/2021,

Kshs

8,656,053,8b
s,642,303360

7,383,81,2

13,962,897,325

28,268,637 ,735

8,440,170,1,53

2,263,994
62376,s26

0,673

8,1.13,988,990

5,863,800,694

4,430,714
17,558,529,935

37,540,749 ,734

7,1.67,704,659

3,557,706
53,815,4f,0

7,225,077,795
36 773,448,408 38,765,827,529

8,256,459,8A

6,139,529

1,532,648,721"

330,777,836

57,344,21,6

9,8i8,8s2,14L
20,002,2W285

1.,408,863,935

7,408,863,935

7,01.5,398,887

2,767,333

3,025,8n,078
L67,673,093

45,723,837
9,356,1.t0,719

19,673,544,935

798,174,974

798 L74,974
'1,066,u0 20,471,779,970

L5,362382,187

8,461.,576,303

256,950,298
5,860,?25;t31,

783,630,456

18,354,707 ,679
8,461,,576,303

256,950,298

8,851,950,562

783,630,456

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from exchaage kansactions
Receivables from non-exchaage harsactions
Inventories
Total curent assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Long Term Deposit
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities

. Trade. and other payables ftom exchange
hansactioru

Trade and other payables from non-exchange
transactions

Pa)rment Received in Advance
Current Provisiors
Project Fund
Medical Commodity Fund
Total cu.rrent liabilitiee

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

KEMSA Capital
Accumulated Funds
Revenue reserves
Revaluation reserve

Total net assets and liabilities

20

27

22

26

32

33

27

2a@)

24(b)
,4

28

29

30

31

36,n3,448,408 38,765,827 ,529
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16. Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 lune 2022 o

l

Note Fa( 20242022 w 2o20/202-t

Kshs Kshs

It
Trarufers from other enrment entities 1 100,000,000 125,000,000
Public conb-ibutiors ard donations 6383,639 6,383,639
Net Sales 3 (1,3s0,619,0s1) 7,317,254,777

ofServices 787 ,689 ,1,06 1,543,4U,208
Rental Revenue 7,298,428 17,205,U8
Finance Income 6 518,452,886 61.6,085,847
Other Income 7 26,392,466 64,299,11,8
Total Receipts 89,597,474 3,683,712,936
ayments

Use of ods and services 8 7,689,600,877 7,847 ,724,360
Employee costs 9 7,223,659,1,86 7,264,329,720
Board en5e5 10 28,107,767 77,687,305
De reciation and amortization e n5e 11 7L9,774,766 117,830,72s
Re airc and maintenance 72 21,134,746 32,6n,217
Fi.nance cosE 13 1,,707,697 7,768,676
Total Expenses 3,083,384,361, 3,282017,396

Net Surplus (2,993,7 86,887) 401,707,540
Decrease/ (Increase) in Current Assets 3,8L4,^176,247 7,445,079,896
Increase creaSe in Current Liabilities 388,657,350 (3,927,577,096)
Irlcrease in Deferred Income 670,688,961, 740,028,640

Depreciation and amortization expense 18 119,774,766 117,830,78
ln cash support on Expenditure
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,938,910,437 .7,1.r,, ,930,896)
Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase ofproperty, plant, equipment and intangible 24 Q,,397,206,362) (964,764\992\

Proceeds From Disposal OfFixed Assets "t4 2,927,270
tncrease /decrease in non current receivable (8,567,096\ (5,300,000)

Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,396,846,1,88) l.969,464,9921
Cash Flows from Financing activities
KEMSA Capital
Accumulated Furrds
Revaluation reserve
Net cash flows used in firancing activities
Net ircrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 544064,248 12,339,s33,600)
Cash arld cash equivalents at 1 July 2021 8,1,1,3,988,990 10,453,522,590
Cash and c-ash equivalents at 30th Jnne 20?2 20 8,6s6,053,239 8,11,3,988,990

Cash flows from operating activities

2

4

5

Asset Disposal(NBV)



Kenya Medical SuPPlies AuthoritY
Annual Report
For the year en

and Financial Statements
ded June 30, 2022

o The financial statements set out on pages 1 to 10 were signed on behalf of the Board of

Directors bY

Terry Kiunge Ramadhani James Macharia

Accounting Officer Head of Finance

Mary Chao Mwadime

Chairman of the Board

ICPAKIVf/No: lOlW
,^r" ar(rb* Date ukla,>t Dare 2o'q'eoZ.X '



o

o\

c.l
N
N

ro

OJ

c)
l.l
r!
OJ

OJ

l-{

o

l!

t!

6
q,,

bo

o
l.a
d

U

OJ

(!
(,)

N

clal
al

ao

t-
qJ

I

fr

>.E

)(n
ie

f. ll
r=
D6

?e
iqJ

tGl

1<

o

E3V -o-
tl

5e

N o bs
o\
o\

;a
NN O

oi-EivI
Egl!trtroJ
l! ilr

OJE
Cr

o
O
O
O
Oo
O
O

q\
(o
\o
ao
co
ro
\o'

co
Lr)
O
\o

\o
ol

CO

N

NN
o\

\o

ro
N
N

N
N

\o
\o

No\
\o
N

N
N

ON
O

l!;io=#EfI)2"
<5

Oaa
O
Oo
O
O

ol
\o

@

roo
o\
\o
o

O

o\
@\o
N
N

co
N
co
o\N

\o
@
Nro
oo

ro

\o
\o

6t
01

\o
N

q
hD

5 t .,t

E

o
O
O
O
Oo
O
O

N
O
O
dl
O1
ro

N

O
@
N

N
OlN

O
O
O
Oo
O
N

o\N
N
N
N
N
o\
N

o

t
,.ov

O
Oo
aO
O
O
O

O O

Et
bo'd (, (E

^5

OaO
o
Oo
oa

ao
O
O
O
O
N

o
@
N

N
o\f.\

NO
O
N
o\
tr)

t..I

01
NN
N
N
c.io\N

tu

o
z

..o N

bx

q,

o

O(J)

o,l.9
EH
Qd

olIo
Eo

0)

ftt

F

.E

o,

lr
0,

OJ

o
bo

.d

o
5p
E
o

I
c.

q
li
o
ll
to

o' O

a,)
h0

x
qJ

q)

al

q

'i
OJ

(,J

o
9p
li

o.d

M

l!

0.)

q)
d
r!

o
&

C)

(^
o)

z

N

0,d
o

o.)

rd

El

E
o
d

o

6.
6t

sI s6t

\6
an
\o
\o
lr)(h
N

N
F'
ao\o
oc.

'.6c{

I.1
to€
ot't,
ro
..1

(rt\o

oo

\o6

to€
\oOt\
\D

t\
t'g\
rtl
<
oo

E.

E
E

F.t\
ro
a{
ooo
o\
6l

T\t\
rn
aI
COo
c
\a
n:

Ec
5
:
F(

oo
c)
I
5
ao

a
a
x
a
E

\ot.aa{I
6i
6t
.'i

F
u?.
GI
EOo
(
..1
d)

co

rl

F

OJ
a
0,

U

a
E
E

t,
00

EEtxt

6
eo

6
ot
E

!

q,

c
0.,

lu

{,
a
a
0,

!J

o
F



O

t5.9>A0)iLL
Ah - cQ.! tr.x
! i: a'\ 0Jrh s: h
-c(ucaJ:'{i-qN=
=!-\Y)"1 +.'| N !1l; trN q
,. d a.t X6U>:
F cllr :!
#hE3
E+n'ri
nYo!l

uo! # !
I >-ol:

EE } }
55",tZ;E.E
Q .-tr ! r..r

j6#El
v6PrX
egbd..rorE-
dho6(,l y oq'aS9q)
E*EE
aE99gE E 6

3 U=d
.9e;3
=-H:aCot
oE"o.r

=# 
g u. i'd,E<q.nVE'HE

62 a adL!.=qSVte
r^ ur !v '! .agP tr .rl s€ G E k.'r-c 3; bD tl.E9gEH

vo
U
o
OJ
bord
Is
t
bD

o
ql

NNON

Naal

iri

,.o

3o
a,I
rat.

AJ

r(

t6

z
et
ol
!:l*t

+dit
raI

o

{j

>E
E cq 6rbas
E-..I
a,-,j< E;
sEg
QE.
=^E,d,) a{E
=? s
.=?,-
gd e-

-6:

oEoY<t=

-e
o\
01

lul

co\oo\
-e
t-O N

o.o5
E€.Eisi g>

\o
O
N

O\oo.
O
c.t

@
N
N
co
N

N
LON

c.l

N
\o
O
@
N

o\
@
c..l

N

\ool
NoO
NO

!

tiv

0,

lvdtrtrq
EJ
L,i .'i
0, 'o

\o

\oa
N

o,\o
NON

\o\oN
N
o.

\o
N

N

\o
@

o\
ro\o

N
N

\o
F-
O
co
c.l

@
aa\o
o.
@\o

:_o

t E H5-5 !13 *.rrts<o

O
O
O
oNN

01
01

N
<.)

OO
O
ON
O
co

No.
N
O
O
6I
c.l

ro

cO
o\
r..)
N
@

O
o\
\o

\o
TON

0,)
bo

lr
Iri

.,ti
Ytt

U

OO
O
a.l

@

o\N

o\

OO
O
O
ro

ta)
\o
t-'
F\
o\

\oNo\
c.l
tr)\o
@

N

N
ro

O

\o
o.
t.-
N
co

9o

.lo.l
- ld\l
=lo; lBl.l.tl
'tEl
l-l

O
oi
F-
O
ao

CO

O
O
O
aN
co

(o
c.l

O
O
O
O\o\o
O
N

c.l

o
co
@
\o
N

O
O
O
o\\o\o
@
N

:oJa
bot,

o1N0,

z

q)

b
G

0,,

o

o

r!
o
0)

o

(!
O

o'n
x

F.

o)

dc
d)

-6
E

o.
OJ

&

oo
OJ

l!

q,

OJ
a.
X
OJ

'E
ko

co

o

N

o

.d

o'll
G

o)

tr
0) o.x

(.)

4,,

OJLx

o)

o
,n
tr

oo
bc

o

I

q.)

o)

o
o
E
t4

No'
s
q

s
.6
Y

do
cl
d)

\D

N
n\
roy)
@
rO

\D
ao

a{
N
t)q.
an

.o.

\p
F{

I
(n
e
an

{.
tf)
N
CN
6.l

aO<l
rnNt\
(,\
c
al

\Dt.ol
Nro
CI\
\o
6l

a

B
N
c'l\o

o
o
arJ

6,1'6l\o

O Io
a,l'

co

ts

Io
c{
a

\D
!\N.lln
al\
\o
N
r.i

o\
o\cr
co
CDr!
a{

!o
0)
to
e
lu
Axo
t!:
F

xtl
!,
o
U
F
a
o
a

C)

Eo.E
!lr
!,E
o

a

e
ao



o

tr o.)

d

B8
OJErD q)

0JL
-Co
bou)
x0)
SF
ci
(a>
doJ>.d
.tr or!tr
*Q
qoJ
!,5
OJ !J

.Eo
LO

aE

TPF'i 6 :fl,ii
:l E a.

>l -d bo!t -4
(ut'n;,
rJl o oJ

SI E E
oil 5F@tM
8l , i
Bt €d
5l XoJtrl eE
Hl s E
Jl -\(d

EI H;
ett s

!qr(/)I >5
HS 5
PS EtrF. id
oN ti-

E E 3s8;A;6t 5V o
:,rZP
.q i o :<v:f'o
3J:Ff E c.E6:.9a

-5 (,' d .i:
EV.N g

a1 +J ('

.buCoJ6bE O E
SEsx
P€.o F

N &EI
O oJ= dc.l 'x H d'\ ': E ..t]i x !.8
: >.- o
> .i: g? [i
lJi (E t-r t{
E o.9z

- cl ..1 .-

S6I E

EI EgH
o,l F Era
BI€ E I
_:l ilB E
Rl ? aEtslE q h
8l H*X
fl or h o.r

EIF R Soi ;-^igEER
FTI (aF.

El E p^t
EI 

'Y 
!

rrl .d .o .!

€
q)

5
d
!J
ql

,
o

!J

q,

t
bo
qJ

0,)

ts

c,)

ol
d
q)
q)
bD

d

o
(g

(s

o\

E'!
o
U

€
OJ

o

tr
o
U

E
0)

o
0)
(!

(E

s

,tr
3
o
(g

o

(B

ri
rD
ao

v
o

bo
(g

E
!J

o

co\o
q)

(n
bo
(u

o
o
U
tr
(g

H
o
0)p.
(u

p
(6
I
G

G

(!
3

v

OJ

'd
o

tr
o

d

E
(.)

o

o

3
o
bo
'd

.JJ

d
bo
q,

d
@

o

OJ
bo

p
t
OJp
s
\o

bo

OJ

-o

o

CD

\o
N

q)

I
(g

o
o)p.

t
6
q,

OJ

3o

dJ

B
OJ

(g

E
o

-t
,!
3o
OJp
s
bo
E

ti
q)

o
Aq)

OJ

6

o
bo

o

N
ro
\o

V
o

o
tr
(g

E
Uo
NN

N<)
N

lIi

'a
3

a,)!
o\
tf)

q,)

qJ

qJ

G(,
q)

z

al
N
N

q)

q)

e
CE

q)

e

hg
)(n
5.i:

DE

aE?tr._r ct

2^
5*

ncll

I,E1<



Kenya Medical SuPPlies Authority
Annual Report and Financial Statements

r ended June 30, 2022o For the yea

18. Notes to the Financial Statements

L, General Information

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) is estabtished by and derives its

authority and accountability from Kenya Medical supplies Authority (KEMSA) Act

ol 2013. Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) is wholly owned by the

Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya' Kenya Medical Supplies

Authority (KEMSA)'s principal activity is Procuremen! Warehousing and

Distribution of Health Products and Technologies to Public health facilities'

2. Statement bf Corrpliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a histo cal cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of ProPerty/ plant and

equipment, marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired

assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities

at their present value. The preparation of finaacial statements in conlormity with

International Public Sector Accounting standards (IPSAS) allows the use of

estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement in

the process of applying the Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA)'s

accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or

complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial

statements, are disclosed in Note 5 of these financial statements'

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya shiltings,

which is the functional and reporting currency of the Kenya Medical supplies

Authority (KEMSA).

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the

state Corporations Act (nclude any other applicable legislation), and. [nternationa]
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Kenya Medical Supplies Authority
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Public sector Accounting standards (IpsAS). The accor:nting policies adopted have

been consistenfly appiied to all the years presented.

3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards

i. Nezu and amended standards and interpretahons in issuz effectiae in the year ended 30

lune 2022.

IPSASB deferred the application date of standards from 1 * Jan uary 2022 owtng to

Covid 19. This was done to provide entities with time to effectively apply the

standards. The deferral was set for 1"t January 2023.

ii. Neut anil amendeil standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effectioe in
the year endeil 30 lune 2022.

13

o

IPSAS 4I:.

Financial

Instruments
The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the

financial reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will
present relevant and useful information to users of financial

statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and

uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement

model for financial assets that considers the characteristics

Applicable: 1st |anuary 2023:
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o

of the asset's cash flows and the objective for which the

asset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments subject

to impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the

guidance. The model develops a strong lirk between an

Entity's risk management strategies artd the accounting

treatment for instruments held as part of the risk

management sEategy.

IPSAS 42

Social Benefits
The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevaace, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about sociai

benefits. The information provided should help users of the

financial statements and general-pupose financial reports

assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

Applicable: 1.,1 January 2023

t4
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(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit

schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financiai performance, financial position and cash flows.

Amendments

to Other

IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 4-1,

Financiai

Instruments

a) Amendments to If€AS 5, to update the guidance related

to tl-te components of borrowing costs which were

inadvertently ornitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative

examples on hedging and credit risk which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which wete

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying

financial instuments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS

which were inadvertently omitted when IIiSAS 41 was issued.

Applicable: 1st )anuary 2023:

Other

improvements

to IPSAS
o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Einancial lnformation about the General

Goaernment Sector.

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts

(sNA 2008).

Applicable 1* J anuary 2023

l5
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. IPSAS 39: Employee Benefts

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29 Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2021' IPSAS handbook as it is

now supetseded by IPSAS 41 which is applicable from 1st January

2023.

Applicable 7't fanuary 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,

measurement, presentatio& and disclosure of leases. The

objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide reievant

information in a marrLer that faithfully represents those

Eansactions. This irrformation gives a basis for users of financial

statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows of arl Entity.

The new standard requires endties to recognise, measure and

present information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 43

Applicable 1* f anuary 2025

The Standard requires,

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Held

l6
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111 Early adoption of stanilards

The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in year

2021,/2022

1 Summary of Significant Accounting policies

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Fees taxes and fines

The Entity recognizes revenues flom fees, taxes and fines when the event occurs

and the asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related

condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the amoun!
deferred income is recognized instead of revenue. other non-exchange revenues

are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service

potential associated with the asset will flow to the Entity and the fair value of the

asset can be measured reliably.

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

e criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less

costs to sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and

the results of discontinued operations to be presented separately

in the statement of financiai performance.

Assets that meet th

l7
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Notds to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-excharge transactions with other government entities are

measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash,

goods, sewices and property) if the trarsfer is fiee from conditions and it is

probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset will

flow to the Entity and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants aie recognized

in the statement of comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are

recognized in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of

comprehensive income over the useful li6e of the assets that has been acquired

using such funds.

Renderins of services

The Entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the

stage of completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated

reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to labour hours

incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours.

Where the contract outcome carmot be measured reliably; revenue is recognized

only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of ods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards

of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods

and when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, arrd it is probable that

t8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow
to the Entity.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield

discounts estimated future cash receipts tluough the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset's net carrying amount The method applies this yield to the

principal outstanding to determine interest income each period.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactione

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributiors must be recognized when the shareholder's or

the Entity's right to receive pa,.nents is established.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is

accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in

revenue.

b) Budget information

The original budget for Fy 2021,-2022 was approved by the National Assembly

on lune 30,2021. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made

to the approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from the

appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the original

budget by the Entity upon receiving the respective approvals in order to

conclude the final budget. The Entity didn't recorded additional appropriations

l9
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Notes to thi Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Budget information (continued)

The Entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure

disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual

basis using a classfication based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial

performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the

financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified

by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget

and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then

presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustrrents to amounts in the financial statements are

also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the

presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

There is no reconciling amount between the achral amounts on a comparable basis

included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as

per the statement of financial performance has been presented in page 1 of these financial

statements.

c) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at t}te

amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates

and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively

enacted, at the reporting date in the area where the EntitSr operates and generates taxable

20
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

income. Current income tax relating to items recogrfzed directly in net assets is

recognized in net assets and not in the statement of financial performance.

Malagement periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax refurns with respect to

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences betwem the

tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax Iiabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in

respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investnnents in controlled

entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the

temporary differences c,rn be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry

forward of unused tax sedits and any uaused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are

recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences, arrd the carry forward of unused tax credits

and unused tax losses can be utilized, except in respect of deductible temporary

differences associated with investnents in controlled entities, associates and interests in

joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that

the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be

available against which the temporary differences cal be urilized.

2t
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policiee (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sulficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be urilized.

Uruecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are

recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will al1ow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabfities are measured at the tax rates that ale exPected to aPply

in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax

iaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date'

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside surPlus or deficit is recognized outside

surplus or deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying

trarsaction in net assets. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a

legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax

liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable Entity and the same taxation

authority.

22
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

Sales tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except

i) when the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or sewices is not recoverabre

from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of
the cost of acq,isition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

ii) when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax incruded
The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivabres or payabres in the statement of
financial position.

d) Investment property

Investment properties are measured initiary at cos! incruding transaction costs. The
carrying amount incrudes the replacement cost of components of a,' existing
investmentproperty at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met
and excludes the costs of day-to-d,ay maintenance of an investnent property.
lnvestment property acquired tluough a non-exchange transaction is measured at its
fair value at the date of acquisition. subsequent to initiai recognition, investment
properties are measured using the cost moder. rnvestment properties are

derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investrnent
property is permanently withd.u*r, from use and no fufure economic benefit or
service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amo,nt of the asset is recognized in the surprus
or deficit in the period of de-recognition. Transfers are made to or from investntent
property only when there is a change in use.

23
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

e) Property, plant and equiPment

AII property, plant and.equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly athibutable to the

acquisition of the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are

required to be replaced at intervals, the Entity recognizes such Parts as individual

assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly' Likewise, when a

major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the

plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition critelia are satisfied. AII

other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred-

Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal

consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

24
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

f) Leases

Finance leases are leases that tralsfer substantially aII of the risks and benefits incidental
to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are

capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or,

if lower, at the present value of the future minimum rease payments. The Entity arso

recognizes the associated lease Iiability at the inception of the lease. The tiability
recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease payments at
initial recognition. subsequent to initial recognitiory lease payments are apportioned

between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized

as finance costs in surplus or deficit. An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated

over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity
will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated

over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating ieases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits

incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. operating Iease payments are

recognized as an operating expense in sr:rplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized atcost. The cost of intangible

assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the

exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated

intangible assets, excludin g capitatized deveiopment costs, are not capitalized and

25
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expehditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is

incurred

The useful Ife of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite

h) Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual

project are recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

i) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be

available for use or sale

ii) Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

iiD How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

iv) The availability of resources to complete the asset

v) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during deveiopment.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less arry accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when

development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period

of expected future benefit During the period of developmen! the asset is tested for

impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized i:runediately in surplus or

deficit

i) Financial instruments

a) Financial assets

Initial recoenition ald measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value tfuough surplus or deficit,

loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investrnents or available-for-sale financial assets,

as appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition,

26
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Summary of Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measuremen! such

financial assets a-re subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into accor:nt any

discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the

effective interest rate. Losses arising from impairment are recognized in the surplus or

deficit.

HeId-to-maturitv.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable pal,rnents and fixed maturities

are classified as held to mahrrity when the Entity has the positive intention and ability to

hold it to maturity. AJter initial me4surement held-to-maturity investments are

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment.

Amortized cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and

fees or costs that are an integral part of rhe effective interest rate. The losses arising from

impairment are recognized in surplus or deficit

Impairment of financial assets

The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a

financial asset or an Entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or an Entity of

financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition

of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

future cash flows of the financial asset or the Entity of financial assets that can be reliably

estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators:

i) The debtors or an Entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial

difficulty.

ii) Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

iii) The probabitity that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganization.

iv) Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows

(e.g., changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

b) Financial liabilities

Initial recoenition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair

value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Entity

determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initiai recognition. AII financial

liabiljties are recognized initiatly at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,

plus directly ath:ibutable transaction costs.
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Loans and borrowins

After initial recognition, interest bearing loaas and borrowings are subsequently

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are

recognized in sw3lus or deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as tfuough

the effective interest method amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by

considering aly discount or premitrm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral

part of the effective interest rate.

i) Inventories

Lrventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was

received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost

of the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Costs incurred in bringing each

product to its present location and conditions are accounted for, as follows:

i) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity

but excluding borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable

value. However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no

charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost

ard current replacement cost. Net rcaLzable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of operations, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to ma-ke the sale, exchange, or distribution. Inventories are recognized as

an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary course of

operations of the Entity. 
29
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive)

as a result of a past event it is probable that an oufflow of resources embodying economic

benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate

can be made of the amor:nt of the obligation. Where the Entity exPects some ol all of a

provision to be reimbursed for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement

is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually cerbain. The

expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial peiformance

net of any reimbursement

l) Contingent liabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses detaiJs of any

contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an oufflow

of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

m) Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset

whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-ocflurence of one or more

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the

financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that

developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become

virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the

asset's value can be measured reliablp the asset and the related revenue are recognized

in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.
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n) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. KEMSA

mainfains four types of reserves; KEMSA Capital, Accumulated funds reserve, revenue

resewe and revaluation reserve.

KEMSA Capital- this reserve is made up of the value of inventory, owned by Ministry of
Healtlr, as at the time held by KEMSA.

Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entify recognizes the effects of changes in accounting poliry retrospectively. The

effects of changes in accounting poliry are applied prospectively if retrospective

application is impractical.

o) Employee benefite

Retirement benefit plans

The Enti$ provides refuement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined

contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an Endty pays fixed

contributions into a separate Entity (a furrd), and will have no legal or constructive

obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay

all employee benefits relating to employee service in the curtent and prior periods. The

contributions to furd obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged

against income in the year in which they become payable. Defined benefit plans are post-

employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans. The defined benefit

funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis.

Deficits identilied are recovered through lump sum payments or increased fufure
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

contributions on proportional basis to all participating employels. The contributiors and

lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation'

p) Foreign currencY transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange

on the date of the trarsaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency

are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the

exchaage rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors,

or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially

recorded during the peri od, are recognized as income or exPenses in the period in which

they arise.

q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of PloPerty, plant and

equiPment

such borrowing costs zue capitalized over the period during which the asset is being

acquired or constructed. alld borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the

statement of financial performance.

r) Related Parties

KEMSA regards a related party as a Person or an Entity with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exefcise significant influence over the authority, or vice

versa. Members of key management zue regarded as related parties and comprise the

directors, the CEO and senior managers
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s) Serviceconcessionarrangements

KEMSA analyses all aspecb of service concession arrangements that it enters into in
determining the appropriate accounting treatrrent and discrosure requirements. In
particular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the authority
recognizes that asset when, and only when, it contrors or reguJates tre services the
oPerator must provide together with the asseg to whom it must provide them, and at
what price.

Irr the case of assets other than 'whole-of-life, assets, it controls, tfuough ownership,
beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant residual interest in the asset at the
end of the arrangement Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair varue. To the
extent that an asset has been recognized, the authority also recognizes a corresponding
liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

t) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits
on call and highly liquid investnents with an originar maturity of three months or less,

which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are zubject to insignificant
risk of changes in value. Bank account balances include amouats held at the Central Bank
of Kenya and at various commerciar banks at the end of the financiar year. For the
purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term
cash imprests and advances to authorised pub[c officers and/or institutions.

a
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u) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been

amendedorreconfiguredtoconformtotherequiredchangesinpresentation.

v) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial yeal end with a significant

impact on the financial statements for the year endedJute3l,2022'

5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity,s fina-ncial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates alrd assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent

liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these

assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustrnent

to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. state all

judgements, estimates and assumptions made:

Estimates and assumPtions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key soulces of estimation

uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the cafrying amounts of assets and ]iabilities within the next financial year,

are described below. The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on Parameters

available when the consoljdated financial statements were prepared. However, existing

circumstances and assumptiors about future developments may change due to market

changes or circurnstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1'140
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Sigrrificant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual value

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the folowing indicators
to inform potential future use and value from d.isposai:

a) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts emproyed by the Entity.
b) The nature of the asset, its susceptib ity and adaptabirity to changes in technology

and processes.

c) The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.

d) Availability of fu_nding to replace the asset

e) Changes in the market in reiation to the asset

Provisions

35
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Prowisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the
information available. Additionai disclosure of these estimates of provisiors is included
in Note 40.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditwe required
to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where
the effect is material. KEMSA records accruals for revenue eamed but not received as at
the date of reporting and for expenses when the expense is due but not invoiced as at the
date of reporting. The revenue earned and expenses due are estimated based on
contracted rates between the Authority and Business partner.
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7. Public Contributions and Donations

w 2021-2022
Kshs
6,383,639

w 2020-2027

Kshs
6,383,639

Total Public Contributions and Donations 6,383,639 6,383,639
recoglt

"ftrategic

The lZe anl0d tun la/e totes be ls tha hast occrued u.se d,nef nateo d Fixe Ad tossetsfrom
the A thu ort b s t)artnersty

Sale Revenue -Pharmaceutical

Sale Revenue -Non-Pharmaceutica.ls
Sale Revenue -Non-Pharmaceuticals -Covid-19
commodities

Sales Revenue -UHC-Pharmaceuticals

Sales Revenue-IIIIC-Non-Pharmaceuticals
Total sales revenues
Cost of Sales
Cost of Sales CGS (Pharms)
Cost of Sales -CGS (Non-Pharms)
Cost of Sales -CGS (Non-Pharms)-Covid-19
corrunodities
Cost of SaIes-CGS-UHC (Pharms)

8. Net Sales

Cost of Sales-CGS-UHC on-Pharms

w 2021-2022
Kshs

3,452,060,71L

2,170,58s,375

5',23,71,6,900

78,418,435

92,477,306
6377,798,727

3,797,919,253
1.,940,300,934

1.,787,954,3s4

60,185,726
81.,457,510

E\ 202U2021
Kshs

2,070,0-14,129

1.,998,080,253

2,398,970,9M

1.,755,828,455

8,22,833,780

1.,853,91,9,861,

1.,n0,542,066

1.,849,2M,865
1.,431,,872,213

Total cost of sales 7,667,81 7 778 6,905,579,004
Net Sales 0,619,051, 1,317,254,777

di ti
li tifa ents

ti
"fstored/da tiaged 7,466,

7. KEMSA id
908, 0,295

feaThe erlue 0 cd -to t ,lcltrr de l s Ie 1I te 0I .ste ot tls eI el ca COI o,1trt,ng di se
to II b II c h Iea ht ct es the,l oc ull esPu ond etth s ttI clts Itomers k(auPp ,y

d1F, Irt BAS de ,tsI tu oflsti tl d hT, coeesti st 0.9 Iles cfi udeI s a Ia ue,f
1fl cks tn0 uo ot 1expl 4 70D dn Dolta edL to.5 c,rg ks a7) ueI ad t

h.s 22 ,')5 I a /s991,7, o esrl o oC 7) I1 o(l olnnt d estiexpt t{1
h.s 89
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F\ 2020-2027
Kshs
400,376,053
936,352,570

20,831,,1,42

ln,204,106
8,720,338

w 2027-2022
Kshs

72,671,,4',23

512,669,708
15,541,,387

2L6,643,654
30,1,62,935

9. Rendering of Services

Suppty Chain Fees: -USAID
-Giobal Fund
-TINICEF
-Ministry of Health
-Other Strate Partners

7,543,484 089,106787Total income
Wa ,lgf"Thi andf ouseht' l',OP curefiltle dffle ent,to,'e lae tese7),, filte.s

ao elsI ct nd basrtnerct4t csSA traot KEM,t,'e ereddetzicess

w 2020-2027
Kshs

11,,205,348

Fv 2021-2022
Kshs

L,298,428

10. Rental Revenue

Rental Income
1'1 ,205,3481.,298,428Total income

erioil is an accrual 1' a Ainoa s fent.

KEMSAIrr f,, ta fo,Ye funeFiduri

,1L1t a sKe Allor'I ac d,tBfs ote a v.sll ,lyo t zL)t'eco1fleR a fro*t vPft
,11eficocR 1t202'tI th30egsI efuleilestt elh 1'.a brtatc1,taht et18

w 2020-2021
Kshs
6L6,085,847

F\ 2027-2022
Kshs
51.8,452,886

11. Finance Income

Bark Interest Received
616,085,847578,452,886Total income

This is income eamed from t funils in the Authoities bank curent accottflts at
tiated interest rates.,te

he

w 2020-2021
Kshs

w 2021-2022
Kshs

2,000
4,510

L,829,205

24,556,7sl

Sale of Tender DocumenV
Sale of Waste Materials
Forex Realized Gain
Direct Revenue (MCP-Cost Recovery)

Other Miscellaneous Income

12. Other Income

26,392,466Total other income
These arc rcoenues earfle m other sources as h above1 Itlid

38
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11,,467i706

50,174,089
2,663,323
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13.Use of Good and Services

Electricity
Water
Professional seivices
Subscriptions
Advertising
Admin Expenses

Audit fees

Conferences and delegations
Consulting fees
Fuel and oil
Insurance
Legal expenses

Licenses and permits
Chemica-ls
Water purification cost
Postage
Printing and stationery
Hire charges

Rental
Security costs
Vehicle Maintenance
Fork Lift Maintenance
Maintenance of own Trucks

Sewage treatment costs
Skills developrnent levies
Inventory scrapping
Telecommunication
Training
Travef accommodation, subsistence and other
allowances*
Other al s

F\ 2027-2022

Kshs
12,655,812

5s1,786

1.,895,445

15,583,817
842,506,072

4,273,300
14,1.83,760

37,970,274
29488,949

1.49,650,484
126,365,n2

8,424,434

265,339
7,853,88s

86,394,1,50

2-L4-16,733
'15,078,397

1,422,045
7 1e,O 

'10

24,698,985
1.6,634,471,

85,821,,747

184,184,990

w 2020-2027

Kshs
1.5,795,s02

898,798

1,917,290
78,799,355

900,576,996

3,500,000
7,940,795

1.4,,548,418

25,0M,66s
1.59,-102,627

99,993,837
7,225,526

5n,304
1.4,880,502

217,175,902

20,L49,703
13,299,73s
3,622,426
2,228,676

19,1.46,03s

L6,604,253

124,014,172
179,832,681.

Total Use of Good and Services 1.,689,600,811 7,866,875,797
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Basic Pay

Overtime
Arrears
House Allowance
Acting Allowance
Bonus

Leave Allowance
Entertainment Allowance
NSSF (Kemsa Part)
Gratuity and Persions
Corn-rLittee Allowances
Special Duty Allowances
Transport Allowalce
Other Taxable Benefits
Casual and Contract Employees
Ex4ratia Payments
Shift Aliowance
Staff Seconded'to Kemsa

14. Employee costs

In endssti

Fv 2021-2022

Kshs
782,1.69,11.4

8,350,464

7L3,749

779,282,000

3,657,470

10,095,000

2,754,000

2,084,800

136,550,511

10,388,000

1.66,840

46,860,000

13,077,766

498,000

13,176,863

(31.,208)

13,865,817

Fv 2020-2021

Kshs
810,404,905

11.,675,220

855,851

189,745,806

4,940,993

8,622,500

2,7n,226
2,238,000

1.44396,940

11.,427,200

38,23s

50,111.,515
-1.6,518,528

1.,002,s06

360,618

8,682,676

531,000

ee €ostsTotal em I 1.,223,659,186 '1,264,329,720

The Employee cost for the year enileil zaas Ksltl,223 Billion representing a 970/o btdget
abs tion.

BOD Sitting & Lunch Allowances
BOD Travel & Accommodation Exp.

BOD Conferences

BOD Honoraria & Other Allowances

Fy 2027-2022

Kshs
13,856,000

11.,724,281,

1.,482,880

1.,044,000

Fy 2020-202r

Kshe
8,8M,000
5,99s,585

1.,797,720

1.,044,000

a

Total BOD expenses 28,107,161 L7,681,305

40

15. Board expenses
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16, Depreciation & amortization

Buildings - Depreciation
Plant & Machinery - Depreciation
Office Equipment - Depreciation
Furniture & Fittings - Depreciation
Computer Equipment - Depreciation
Intangible Assets - Depreciation
Motor Vehicles - D reciation

w 2021-2022
Kshs
32,596,898
21,71.6,403

7,682,617
4,671.,862

-12,042,074

1.,293,711.

39,171.,206

w 2020-2021
Kshs
32,588,150
17,873,421.

4,954,666
4,71.4,010

7,854,777

323,428
49,521.,674

Total depreciation & amortization 119,774,766 117,830,L25

17.Repair & Maintenance

Repairs to Buildings and Roads
Maintenance of QA Tools & Equipment
Plant Repairs & Maintenance
Computer Stationery Expenses
Computer Maintenance Expenses
Computer Maintenance Agreement
Purchase of Tools & Maintenance

Fy 2027-2022
Kshs

1.,8e8350
378,90-t

1.,231,n9
71.,512,003

7,537,504
4,575,209

F\ 2020-2027
Kshs

3,576,840
2,783,075

803,743
5,467,473
2,M2,81.6

3,089,612
L,634,031.

Total Repair & Maintenance 2-t,1.34,746 19,791,591.

18. Finance costs

Bank Charges

Fv 2027-2022
Kshs

1.,707,697

w 2020-2021
Kshs

1,768,676

Total finaace costs 1,707,691 7,768,676

19. Other gainsflosses)

Gain on Disposal of Assets
Loss on Disposal of Assets

F\ 2021.-2022
Kshs

2,902,91.6"

(841,460)

F"t 2020-2021
Kshs

Total Other gains/(losses) 2,067,456

4t
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w 2020-2027
Kshs

0

8L2,741.
'18,843,438

70A32
412,412,454

1,221
252,789,372

1.,243,065,882
66,66s,526

339,857,900
1,920,371.

L,959,665
125,683

9,750
22373

7,092,339
909

1,,069,586

1,029,78s
4,195;,195

774,107

40,480,896

L,35t,267,598
3,237,732,786

.1,,077,17-1.,295

L,657,647

43,558,621.

1.,467

w 2027-2022
Kshs

0

16,909,238
18,843,438
6,163,761

297,207,049
921'

635,438,430

997,925,867
738,301,227
753,725,118

;
0

(0)

700A57,202
4,34L,306,340

1,M,599,872
495,137
453,077

4,226,560

0

PETTYCASH
NBK-OPERATIONS
WORLD BANK E.A LAB PROJECT

NBKDISTREUTION
KCBDRUGS
KCBDISTRIBUTION
CBA
CO-OP - MEDICAL GRANTS
co-oP BANK GF OPERATIONS (KSH)

co-oP BANK GF OPERATIONS (USD)

co-oP BANK GF ATM R4P1 (USD)

co-oP BANK GF ATM R5P1 (usD)
co-oP BANK GF ATM R6 (USD)

co-oP BANK GF ATM R4P2 (USD)

co-oP BANK GF ATM R5P2 (USD)

CO-OP BANK GF ATM R7P1

CO.OP BANK GF ATM R4P2

CO-OP BANK GF ATM R5P1

co-oP BANK GF ATM R5 (KSH)

CO:OP BANK GF ATM R7P1

WORLD BANK HSSP NON-POOLED
WORLD BANK HSSP POOLED PROIECT

SSDCO.OPBANK
SSD EQUITY BANK
KEMSA EQIIITY WAREHOUSE
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT

KEMSA EQUITY BANK OPERATIONS (KSH)

KEMSA EQLIITY BANK OPERATIONS (USD)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

MPESA BI.]LK PAYMENT

2

8,113,988,9908,656,053,238Total cash and cash e uivalents

close all Global funds account held at KEMSA

balance of sh. 8,655,053,238 is an amount of sh.

g,147,226,860.35 ringfenced for specific activities and Development Partners funds hence

not available for Atthority's use. The only funds avai-lable for the Authoritlz's utilization

is sh. 508,826,377.38. During JrteFYzO2l/2022 the Authority was instructed by National

Included in the cash and cash equivaients

toTre
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20 (b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current accounts

Cash on Hald ald On Transit

w 2021-2022

Kshs
8,656,053,n8

0

E'{ 2020-2021

Kshs
8,113,988,990

0
Total cash and cash e uivalents 8,656,053,238 8,113,988,990

21. Receivables from Exchange Transactions

{Trade Debtors -Receivable

Su cr ntre a

w 202-t-2022

Kshs
5,554,733,989

88,769,371,,/

w 2020-2027

Kshs

5,756,958,722

106,842,572
Total receivables from excha e transactions 5,642,303,360 5,863,800,694

eceivables from Non-Exchange

Qthqr DeblorS - U-m4yqiced R_ecqivabfqq

I-nsurance Receivables

Travel Imprest Debtors
Staff Salary Advances Debtors
Standing Imprest Debtor
Staff Petty Cash Debtor
Board imprest debtor
Staff Medical Advances
Staff Accountable Imprest
Rent Deposit
l:rterest Receivable

Withheld vat receivable

Transactions
.R

utili De it

FY 2027-2022

Kshs

1.,437,335

2,358,757

438,208

791.,

81.,

2,778,321

98,00

w 2020-2021

Kshs

23,802

186,708

22,700

2,L96,128

200,000

Total receivables from non-exchange
transactions 7,383,81.2 4,430,714

43
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F\ 2020-2021

Kshs

17,554,455,351.

2,939,878

L,134,706

Fv 2027-2022

Kshs

13,958,506,662

3,8L5,509
575,1il

Medical Supplies-Pharmaceutical & Non-

Pharmaceutical Stocks

Consumable stores-Stationery

Inventories

Consumable stores-Bev & Others

17,558,529 3513,962,89 7
Total inventories at the lower
realizable value

of cost and net

Ort of stock oalue of sh. 13. billion the entity is holiling 3il party stocks oalueil at

sh. 8.083 Billion.
958
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24 b. Intangible Astets
TOTALSNTANCDLECOMPUTER SOFTWARE

coST

AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT

143,106,931.78a2,902,037.78130,204,894.00AT TIIE BEGTNNNG OF TIIE YEAR

1.293 .711.121,293,711.L2
AMOBTISATION CITARGE FOB TIIE YEAB

14t,t00,6a:2.907t,195,7t8.90130,204.894.00AT TIIE END OS THE YEAR

2,263,994.412,263,984.41NBV AS AT 301612022

tl6

,42.783,5Gr 0012.57E,610 00
cost as AT 30/6/2020 130-204,89{.00

3,EErJt3.rl3.E81,1331
ADDMONS

ADDINONS

16,{59,743.3t 716,661 ,6J7 3l
cos; t5 A't 30l6JZ0?2 130201894O0
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These are rental ileposits paiil for u:arehouses tlnt the Authoity has rentetl to store
nedical cofimodities

7,0-t5,398,882
Out of S.3Billion liabilities there is a liability that relates to COWD supplies oalued
at 437 million that haue been ileliaereil but not paiil for. There is also a liability for
balance of funds meant to pay goaernfient taxes and MOH programme commodities
aalued at 4.8 Billiol

25. Long Term Receivables from Non-
Exchange Transactions

Long-term Deposit

FY 2021-2022

Kshs
62,376,526

w 2020-2021,

Kshs
53,875,430

Total long-term receivables from non-exchange
transactions 62,376,526 53,815,430

26.Trade and other payables from exchange

Trade Creditors - Medical
Trade Creditors - Not Invoiced Receipts
Trade Creditors - Operations
Trade Creditors - Distribution
Trade Creditors - Development Partner's Grants
Stale Cheques - Unclaimed Payments
Rent deposit's - tenants
Withheld vat
Vat output - due
Withheld tax- consultancy
Withheid tax- contractors
Withheld Tax - Rental Income

Suppliers Funds Retained
ADVANCES RECOVERY

transactions

VA'f ou t liabili

FY 2027-2022

Kshs
2,464,270,152

437,723,732

508,122,729
-16,470,010

4,798,798,971,

3,032,428

(2,333)

666

4,804,936

7,599,51,3

0

27,639,338

300

0

F\ 2020-202L

Kshs
2,786,573,806

2,588,077,506

780,784,-194

7.1.2,882,794

1,322,468,8'16

3,032,428

(1)

(0)

0

1

0

27,639,338

(0)

0
Total trade and other payables from exchange
transactions 8,256,459,842
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Fy 2020-2021

Kshs

2,746,989

1

(0)

0

(5)

13,200

t,1,47

F\ 202L-2022

Kshs
1

(0)

1,128,028

3,438,851

1

(7)

1,557,25

15

NSSF PAYABLE

NHIFPAYABLE
PA\G PAYROLL PAYABLE

SACCO DEDUCTIONS

PAYROLLCONTROL

PAYE IMPREST PAYABLE

EMPLOYEE IMPREST PAYABLE (RTFUNDS)

BOARD IMPREST PAYABLE GETUNDS)

EMPLOYEE PETTY CASH PAYABLE (REFUNTDS)

transactions

bles from non-exchangeZ7,Trade and other paYa

EMPLOYEE PAYABLES , 761,3326,139,529
ables from exchan e transactionsTotal a

F\ 2020-2021

Kshs
25,877,0783,0

w 2027-2022

Kshs

1.,s32,648,721

ayments Received in Advance

Customer

P

3,025,877,O781,532,648,721
Total t

These
Minis

ate ties.di
keI hetItto1lA htthe1t0 L:Cda fro*tylleda tfitecex byfurdt otfilttI codie CAlrlcutetos llc leCUHofe0 IrtH

w 2020-2027

Kshs
1r7,961,,863

167,573,093

17,961.,863

Fy 2027-2022

Kshs
167,673,093

330,717,836

1.67,673,099

Balance Brought Forward

Additional Provisions

Current Provisions

p.ou1"i61 {Jtilized
767,673,093330,717,836rovlsl()nsTotal

48
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BAL B/F
Add: Cumulative bar* interest earned on
EAPHLNP Account
Add: Prior period adjustment on KHSSp interest
eamed
Less: Cumulative bank interest earned on
EAPIILNP Account

30. Project Fund

Add: Lrterest refundable to DAMDA

w 2021-2022

Kshs

45,723,83L

71,343,918

276,467

FY 2020-2027

Kshs

18,843,438

(11343,918)

38,224,3L1
Total ro ect fund 57,344,216 45,723,837

. Medical Commodity Fund

Medical Commodi Fund

w 2021-2022

Kshs
9,818,892,L4L

F\ 202U2021

Kshs
9,356,L1,0,719

Total medical comm fund 9,818,892,L4I 9,356,11,0,719

Public Contribution and donations

32. Deferred intome

(Current Portion
reco from Donated Assets

w 2021-2022

Kshs
1.,408,863,93s

w 2020-202\

Kshs
798,174,974

Total deferred inco me 7,408,863,,935 798,174,974
recognl lhof frotogte lt ,1d- tiNaTrea

The ash ez thdty sb ti lto c Gr,0 I fltorp IG bo o I d IUAS tk()frnfl oss thep ds d to t (lhfrn crPa the G ob Illsupp atby the ,tofu Ii

33. KEMSA Capiral

Balance at the end of the Financial year

F\ 2021-2022

Kshs
8,461,s76,303

w 2020-2021

Kshs
8,46-1,,576,303

Total KEMSA Ca ital 8,46L,576,303 8,461,,576,303

49
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Note FY 2021/2022 w 2020/2021

Kshs

Cash flows from o eratin
Recei
Transfers from other ernment entities I 100,000,000 125,000,000

2 6,383,639 6,383,639

Net Sa1es 3 (L,350,6t9,051) 1.,317,254,777

Ren of Services 4 787,689,106 1,,543,484,208

Rental Revenue ) 1,298,428 1-1,,20s,348

Finance lncome 6 518,452,886 616,085,847

Other Income 7 26,392,466 64,299,118

Total Recei 89,597,474 3,683,7'1.2,936

Pa ents
8 L,683,604,9',23 1,,847,724,360

ee costs 9 1,,223,659,786 1,,264,329,720

Board enses 10 28,107,-1.61

reciation and amortization 1-t 119,174,766 117,830,12s

Re and maintenance 12 27,130,634 32,677,211.

Finirnce costs 13 1-;707;69r L768,6V6
3,083,384,361. 3,282,0-11.,396

Net S lus (2,993,786,887) 401.,701,540

Decrease/ in Current Assets 3,81,4,176,247 1,M5,079,896

Increase/ ecrease in Current Liabilities 388,657,350 (3,927,s71,,096)

Increase/ (Decrease in Deferred Income 610,688,961 740,028,640

Asset D
D reciation and amortiz ation 18 119,174,766 1-17,830,12s

In cash su on diture
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,938,910,437 (L,222,930,896)

50

34 Cash Generated from OPerations

Kshs

activities

Public contributions and donations

Use of goods and services

17,681,305

Total Expenses

(Increase)
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35 Financial Risk Management

The Entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity
risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Entity's overall risk management

programme focuses on unpredictabfity of changes in the business envirorunent and

seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting

acceptable levels of risk. The Entity does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to

ensure that credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The Entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

i) Credit risk

The Entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable

to pay amounts in fulI when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and

deposits with barks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial

investrnents. Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into

account its financiai position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk li:rLits are

set-based on intemal or.extemalassessment in accordance with limits set by- the-directors.

The anounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for

doubfful receivables, estimated by the Entity's management based on prior experience

and their assessment of the current economic environment.

Financial Risk Management

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing

the Entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any

collateral obtained is made up as foilows:

5l
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Financial Risk Management

The customers under the fuIly performing category are paying their debts as they

continue trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the

allowance for uncollectible amounts that the Entity has recognised in the financial

statements is considered adequate to cove! any potentially irrecoverable amounts, The

Entity has significant concentration of cedit risk on amounts due from counties. The

board of directors sets the Entity's cedit Policies and objectives and lays down

p,u.ametels within which the various aspects of credit risk management are oPefated.

As at 30 June 2022

4,072,450,3741,s69,852,98s5,642,303,360Receivables from
exchange transactions

7,383,8127,383,812Receivables from non-
exchange transactions

8,6s6,053,2388,656,053,238Bank balances
4,072,450,37410,233,290,03514,305,740,410Total

As at 30 Jtne 2021

4,374,248,6981,489,551,9965,863,800,694
exchan transactions
Receivables from

4,430,114Receivables from non-
exchange transactions

8,1 13,988,9908, I 13,988,990Bank balances
4,374,248,698 09,607,971,10013,982,219,798Total

I

tt
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ii) Liquidity risk management

Lrltimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Entity,s directors,

who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the

management of the Entity's shor! medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Entity manages liquidity risk through continuous

monitoring of forecasts arld actua.l cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the Entity under non-derivative

finaacia-l liabilities by their remainjng contractua-l maturities at the reporting date. The

amounts disdosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due

within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not

significant.

53

Liquidity Risk 0-30 Days 31-90 Days
Over 90
Days

'fotal

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
As at 30 ,lune 2022
Trade les 21L455,859 325,880,486
Creditors-Not invoiced Recei 437,723,132 437,723,132

1,580,461,492 600,000,000 2,180,461,493 4,798,798,971
Rent Deposits- Tenants 3,032,428 3,032,428
Retentions 0 0 2t,639,338 21,639,338
Customer Prepal,rnents t,532,648,721
Provisions 299,924,s35 0 30,793,301 330,7L7,836
Total 3,265,978,038 7,577,465,859 2,968,736,877 8,250,056,760
As at 30 June 2021
Trade payables 1,604,213,72s 935,252,673 540,774,395 3,080,240,793
Creditors-Not invoiced Receipts 2,588,017,506 2,588,017,s06
Development Partners 1322,468,8t6 1,322,468,816
Rent Deposits- Tenants 3,032,428 3,032,428
Retentions 0 0 2t,639,338 21,639,338
Customer Prepayments 89,276,165 2,936,600,913 3,025,877,078
Provisions 148,971,107 (.) 18,701,986 167,673,093

1,753,784,832 1,024,528,838 7,431,23s,382 10,208,949,052

Kenya Medical Supplies Authority
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2022

t--

1,68s,s16,s46 2,9&&,E62,691

Development Partners

Total
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Financial Risk Management

iii) Market riek

The Entity has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced

by the Entity on an ongoing basis, eva-luate and test the design and effectiveness of its

internal accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising ftom changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity

prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the Entity's income or the value of its

holding of financia-l instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage

and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while opti:rrising the

retum. Owerall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk

Management Cornmittee. The Entity's Finance DePartment is responsible for the

development of detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by

Audit and Risk Maaagement Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those

policies. There has been no change to the Entity's exposure to market risks or the manner

in which it manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk

The Entity has fraasactional currency exPosures. Such exposure arises through purchases

of goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local fl[renry. Invoices

denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and

conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The Entity

manages foreign exchange risk form fufure corn-rrercial transactions and recognised

assets and liabilities by projecting for expected sales proceeds and matching the same

with expected payments

54
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Financial Risk Management

The carrying amount of the Entity's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and

monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are recorded in Kenya shillings

equivalenl

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions

that offer favourable interest rates.

Financial Risk Management

The Entity analyses its interest rate exposure on 4 dynamic basis by conducting a
sensitivity analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate
shifts. The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variabies, in
particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant. The analysis has been performed on
the same basis as the prior year. using the end of the year figures, the sensitivity analysis
indicates the impact on the statement of comprehensive income if current floating interest
rates increase/ decrease by one percentage point as a decrease/increase of KShs-
(67,919,884.04) and KShs 67,919,884.04 respectively.

Decrease/incre ase of 5% rate would result in a profit before tax of KShs (999,599,420.19)
and KShs 339,599,420.19 rcspectw ely.

55
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b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Entity's financial condition may be adversely affected

as a lesult of changes in interest rate levels. The Entity's interest rate risk arises from bank

deposits. T?ds exposes the Entity to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk

e.xposure arises mainly from interest rate movements on the Entity's deposits.

Management of interest rate riek

Sensitivity analysis
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

36 Related Party Disclosures

Nature of related partv relationships

Entities and other parties related to tte Entity include those parties who have abfity to

exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial

decisions. Related parties include management Personnel, their associates and dose

family members.

Governme nt of Kenva

The Government of Kenya is the principal sharehoider of the Entity,holdng 100% of the

Entity's equlty interest. The Government of Kenya has provided fuIl guarantees to all

long-term lenders of the Entity, both domestic and external.

i) The Parent Ministry.

ii) County Govemments

iii) OtherSes and SAGAs

ir) The National Treasury

' v) Key maaagement

vi) Board of directors.

37 Segment Information

KEMSA does not operate in units hence does not report in segments.

56
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38 Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Assets

The following Assets which are in Financial Statements have Ownership disputes

2020-2021 2019-2020

Kshs Kshs
CONTINGENT ASSETS

EMBAKASI GREEN SITE LR Number 28454
and28465

220,000,000 220,000,000

KAKAMEGA GREENSITE ALLOTMENT
LETTER 209163 A.11

7,500,000 7,s00,000

KISUMU MUNICIPALITY BLOCK B / 128 25,000,000 25,000,000

Total 252,500,000 252,500,000

(i) EMBAKASI GREEN SITE LR NO Number28464and,2846i

In January 2019 Kenya Air Ports Authority filed a complaint before the National land

Corrmissio4 qqekl4g lqygc4ti_o,3 o_f sgvqrf p-41c_e.l_s._qf lard gIcl1ed t-o1g lqld palqel No,

LR 21919 which is registered in favor of Kenya Air Ports Authority. Among those parcels

of land include LR No. 28454 and 28465 which was Registered in favor of KEMSA. Upon

hearing the complaint, the National Land Commission recorrmended revocation of inter

alia KEMSA's title over LR No .28464 and 28465 and issuance of a sublease instead.

KEMSA instructed its lawyers to move to court and challenge the recommendaSons

made by National Land Corn:rrission. Judicial review proceedings were instituted before

the Environment and Land Cor:rt being Judicial Review application No. 91, of 2019 E:d:ed

on 286 March, 2019. The matter is still in court represented by Gathii Irungu and Co.

Advocates. As per the latest update from the coursel, the Attomey General, Public

Service Commission and the Kenya Airports Authority are in negotiations through our

51
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lawyer to secure the parcel of land. This parcel currently holds a value of KES

220,000,000.00 (two hundred and twenty million shillings) as our books of financials. ln

the case where the tevocation is upheld, we will have to expunge the properties frOm our

books of accounts.

KAKAMEGA GREENSITE ALLOTMENT LETTER 209153/A11

KEMSA had earlier been allocated a parcel of land in Kakamega in October 2002 via

Allotment letter ref No. 209163/411.. Kakamega County government later deveioped a

referral hospital on the land. KEMSA successfully engaged the county of Kakamega

seeking a replacement arrd managed to secufe an allocation of approximately 1.9 hectares

(4.7 acres) currently registered under Kakamega County. KEMSA, tlrough the Legal

office has engaged the county to facilitate the transfer of the parcel of land to the

Authority. The request has been presented though our coursel to the county cabinet

seeking to resolve to transfer execute a deed transfer to KEMSA. KEMSA has aiso

engaged Lawyers Ong anda and Advocates for conveyance of the same. A valuation of

the parcel-has-been initiated to deterrrine the fair value of.theland, This rnight'result-in'

the de-recognition of the previous parcel of land recognized with a carrying value of KES

2s00,000.00

KISUMU MUNICIPALITY BLOCK B/T28

KEMSA had earlier been issued with a parcel of land in Kisumu whose land reference

number is KISUMU MUMCIPALITY BLOCK B/128by way olgg-yeat Lease from 01st

October, 2005. The Lease was issued to the Authority. However, it erroneously indicated

that the Lease is issued in favour of the Cabinet Secretary to the Treasury (as trustee for

the Ministry of Health), a body corporate duly established under the Cabinet to the

Treasury Act (Cap 102) of the laws of Kenya. The Authority instructed coursel Ong'anda

58
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and Advocate to make an application to correct the error and have KEMSA registered as

the proprietor. The said counsel advised that on following up the issue with the land,s

regstry in Kisumu, it transpired that the said tand is registered as above and is also

registered in the name of Unga Limited Kisumu. The matter is with the DCI (Frauds

Unit)-Kisumu.

39 Surplus Remission

In accordance with section 219 (2) of the Public Financial Management Act regulations,

regulatory entities shall remit into Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its surplus

funds reported in the audited financial statements after the end of each financial year.

Kenya Meilical Supplies Authoity Made a deficit of IGh z,ggt/z1,411 duing the year, in
(Fy 2020/2021 Surplus of Ksh. 401,707,539). The balance of funils of the Authoit! at the

end of the Financial Year, as stateil in r{EMSA Act 2073, shall be rctaineil for the purpo ses

fot which the Authoity znas establisheil, hetce no remission made to the Consotiilateil

Fund.

40 Events after the Reporting Period

There zuere no mateial adjusting and non- adjusting eoents after the reporting peiod

47 Ultimate and Holding Entity

The Entity is a state Corporation/ or a semi- Autonomous Govemment Agency under

the Ministy of Health. Its ultimate parent is the Govemment of Kenya.

42 Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).
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